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Message

Hon. Minster Dolores Cristina

Minister of Education, Employment and the Family
The pre-Budget 2011 document indicates that “the objectives from the development of
education in Malta shall be aimed at having an educational sector of excellence, in line
with the strategic frameworks of the renewed Lisbon Agenda, the EU 2020 strategy and
government’s vision 2015 which focus include having a knowledge-based society, reducing
the number of early school leavers and equipping citizens with the key competences
needed while increasing the number of people with higher education qualifications”.
I consider this Annual Joint Report of the Malta Qualifications Council (MQC) and the
National Commission for Higher Education (NCHE) as a response to these objectives.
The research and training activities as well as the number of information and consultation
meetings with stakeholders lead towards the building of structures and processes that will
enable more people to of the benefits of lifelong learning. The mixture of national and
international activities illustrates that the two agencies have established sound networks
that facilitate exchanges of good practice as well as benchmarks upon which we measure
our standards and quality of education.
The work carried out by the two agencies can be considered as the foundation of a
culture of quality assurance, transparency and employability. Through an active dialogue
with public and private training providers, employers, students and parents organisations,
trade unions as well as policy-makers from various sectors of development, the agencies
have created a network of objectivity and consensus on qualifications that will certainly
lead to higher levels of trust. On the other hand my Ministry has supported this process
by embarking on a programme of investment in education both of a recurrent and
capital nature. Recurrent expenditure in 2010 was mainly focused on the building of
modern school facilities and substantial increases in further and higher education including
vocational training.
The recurrent expenditure in kindergarten to Higher Secondary Education took a sharp
rise from €91.7m in (2006) to €97.5m (2010) with increase in the capital expenditure
for the Construction Programme of Schools from €3.4m (2006) to €5.9m (2010). The
same could be said for the recurrent expenditure of MCAST an increase from €9.6m
(2006) to €14.6m (2010) as well as that of the University of Malta (including the Junior
College) from €30.6m (2006) to €49m (2010).
The direct support to students has also been increased from €18.9m (2006) in Maintenance
Grant to €21.4m (2010) which do not include an increase in scholarships from €239,788
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(2006) to €666,000 in 2010. The government’s contribution to Church Schools also
increased from €29.6m in 2006 to €38.5m in 2010. Government’s financial support to
training and employment schemes including the Youth Special Training Scheme increased
from €1.9m (2006) to €3.8m in 2010. Notwithstanding the international financial crises
which hit our local economy, our investment in education is among the highest in the
European Union standing at 5.5% (2009) of GDP as against the EU average of 4.96%
(2007).
Government strongly believes that expenditure in education is an investment in the
country’s workforce which in turn will help to sustain our economy in the short-term and
enhance long-term economic growth.
Financial investment in education is coupled with an intensive reform programme across
our system of education so that we ensure that a clear link is established between the
acquisition of knowledge, skills and competences and employability. It is high on my
Ministry’s agenda the need to enhance key competences in compulsory education, provide
students at the end of secondary education with a comprehensive profile of their capacities
and make vocational training more attractive and relevant to the labour market. The
work of MQC and NCHE must be seen in this perspective, backed by a new curriculum
framework launched in early spring 2011 as well as a significant increase in school services
at all levels and for all children.
In this context, the proposed amendments to the Education Act to merge MQC and
NCHE and establish through legal parameters the Malta Qualifications Framework, the
validation of informal and non-formal learning and the accreditation, quality assurance
and licensing of all further and higher education programmes and institutions gains timely
significance. The time is ripe to transform the two successful agencies into national
guardians of quality, standards and benchmarking of further and higher education. In
helping individuals achieve a higher quality of life various structures must be factored in
a reform process that values all learning; that builds an awards system on transparency,
progression and mobility; that constantly oversees that qualifications lead to employability,
personal and social development and active citizenship.
This Annual Report shows that the ground work has been accomplished successfully and
within a relatively short period of time. It also illustrates how Malta’s participation in
Europe, such as those related to the Bologna and Copenhagen Processes, the European
Qualifications Framework, the Mutual Recognition of Qualifications, Erasmus Mundus,
ECVET and EQAVET has been pro-active, attracting to our shores extensive funding
opportunities and experts and providing technical support to bigger countries such as
Greece, Portugal, Latvia, Cyprus and Bulgaria.
The future of MQC and NCHE as one agency looks bright but challenging. On this
structure lies our nation’s quest for excellence in further and higher education. I am
confident that with the already existing high standards in our educational establishments
we will continue to provide all citizens with regular and systematic opportunities that help
them make lifelong learning a reality during their working life and beyond.
I wish to take this opportunity to thank the Chairman, Board Members and Staff of
the two agencies for their sterling contribution to Malta’s further, vocational and higher
education sectors.
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Introduction by

Mr Joseph Abela Fitzpatrick

Chairman of the Malta Qualifications Council

When I look back at 2010 I realise what a positive impact MQC has had on our education
system. The increased number of learners across the wide spectrum of our society makes
it necessary to have structures as the MQC so as to ensure higher quality and standards in
education and training provision.
During my second year as Chairman of MQC, I witnessed a growing interest by various
stakeholders in the work of the agency. This is evidenced in the number of participants to
each of the many activities held throughout the year. A quick look at the events organised
in 2010 illustrated a diverse approach to the issues related to the quality of education and
the structures necessary to ensure attractiveness to learning and employability.
With the restricted budget with which MQC operates, it is impressive to realise how many
events took place, how many members of staff have had international experiences, the
number of published research and the increasing amount of stakeholders that came in
touch with the work of MQC. This achievement would not have been possible without the
pro-active disposition shown by all members of staff to attract foreign funding.
In my long experience in the private sector, I realised that the secret of success lies not
only in being a visionary but also in realising efficiently and effectively your plans and
aspirations. At MQC I have witnessed the same spirit one would normally find in an
entrepreneurial context. Almost all projects submitted for EU funding were successful;
research and training activities in Malta and overseas were organised within strict deadlines
and high standards; capacity building of all members of staff was constant and systematic;
administrative and financial aspects were seen too very efficiently; communication with
stakeholders and the general public administered in a very professional way; information
on qualifications timely and precise. Really and truly one cannot ask for more from a staff
complement that belies the amount of achievements in 2010.
The decision taken by the Ministry of Education, Employment and the Family to merge
MQC with NCHE also proved to be an enriching experience. The two ‘teams’ managed to
gel their expertise and experience in a professional way. The two sets of members of staff
complement each other and interact in a very efficient manner. Two tangible examples of
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good practice can be derived from their ability to jointly organise the seminars related to
the National Focal Point of the EQF and the Bologna Process. Their interaction in both
set of events was exemplary.
At the heart of this challenging process the Chief Executive of MQC Dr James Calleja
acted as a constant focal point providing visions, efficiency and above all a systematic way
of building capacity in each and every member of staff. Personally I think it was the drive
to accomplish each member of staff that made the merger of the two agencies possible.
I augur that in 2011 a new legal framework will sustain the merger between MQC and
NCHE so that the quality and standards of education and training will continue to attract
more people to lifelong learning making all citizens’ quest for employability a tool for a
better quality of life.
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Foreword

Dr Philip Von Brockdorff

Chairman of the National Commission for Higher Education

The year 2010 was a very challenging year for the National Commission for Higher
Education. The previous Chief Executive parted ways at the end of 2009 as did one
Commission Officer. Another Commission Officer resigned in early 2010 and a third
joined a Secretariat in one of the Ministries.
Replacement of staff was a priority for NCHE in view of its commitments both local and
international. Two calls for application were issued in the first and second quarter of 2010
and the vacancies were filled in late summer. This gave NCHE fresh impetus to resume the
implementation of its business plan and assume new tasks as assigned by the Ministry for
Education, Employment and the Family. The Commission is indeed very pleased with the
new recruits and this bodes well for the future.
Despite these very difficult circumstances, NCHE kept its commitment in terms of drafting
Malta’s position on further and higher education at EU level and also participated at relevant
EU Higher Education meetings. The nomination of Dr James Calleja (Chief Executive of
Malta Qualifications Council) as Acting Chief Executive was an important step forward
and his support and direction was fundamental in embarking on two NCHE projects: the
profiling of sixth forms both public and private and which will provide insights on students,
teaching methods and resources, and the revisiting of MATSEC with the aim of facilitating
access to further and higher education. These high profile projects are part and parcel of
NCHE’s research and advisory role.
A very positive outcome in 2010 was the very close working relationship developed with
the MQC. Dr Calleja, as Acting Chief Executive, was instrumental and staff members at
NCHE and MQC worked closely on a number of projects. This too bodes well in view of
the forthcoming legislative merger of both entities. The decision to move NCHE staff to
MQC’s St. Lucia premises was testimony to the level of collaboration and maturity shown
by staff of both entities. For all intents and purposes, NCHE and MQC are now one
organization sharing resources and ideas.
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The merger of both entities was also debated extensively at board level. The debate
has been productive with a focus on the structural arrangements which will support the
merger. The Board also approved the joint NCHE/MQC Business Plan for 2011 following
discussions with staff members. A joint NCHE/MQC staff event was held for this purpose
in December 2010.
In 2010, NCHE applied for European Social Funding to support the forthcoming
legislation on quality assurance, enhance the Commission’s student affairs function, and
carry out a skills gap analysis to increase the relevance of further and higher education
teaching and research. We eagerly await the outcome of this application.
NCHE registered an increase in the number of institutions participating in our annual
survey on post-secondary and tertiary education. In all 36 institutions from the state and
private sector responded to the survey. This was also thanks to NCHE’s insistence and the
increase further enhances the credibility of the statistical data.
It is interesting to note that in 2010, 73% of 17 year olds participated in further and
higher general and vocational education. The significant increase as compared with
2009 is attributable to the increase in the number of registered students at MCAST and
the University of Malta. One should note also that post-secondary vocational education
(full-time & part-time) attracts more students than post-secondary academic education.
According to our 2010 survey, 54% of the total post-secondary student population
participated in vocational courses.
The increase in the number of registered students at further and higher education
is a positive trend given Malta’s EU 2020 targets. One should also note that the nonparticipating students aged 17 may opt for post-secondary studies at an older age and
therefore should not be defined as early school leavers.
As stated at the beginning of this foreword, 2010 was a very challenging year. 2011
promises to be just as challenging but I am very encouraged by the level of commitment and
team spirit shown by the people who have been recruited. Further and higher education
is a specialized and critical area for the social and economic development of the Maltese
Islands. It’s also an exciting area for young graduates.
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A Year in Review

Dr James Calleja

Chief Executive Malta Qualifications Council
and the National Commission for Higher Education

Flicking through this annual report one cannot help but give credit to the members of
staff of the Malta Qualifications Council (MQC) and the National Commission for Higher
Education (NCHE). They have achieved remarkable results during a year marked by
increased activities, new services as well as structural reforms. From two separate entities
today, MQC and NCHE is one agency focusing on the wide spectrum that qualifications
offer at the various levels and sectors of our education and training system in further and
higher education.
The launch in September 2009 of the Referencing Report of the Malta Qualifications
Framework to the European Qualifications Framework opened up new challenges met
by the signing of over twenty-five protocols with various public and private education
institutions. Towards the end of 2010 the Referencing Report was updated and revised
to include a new Awards policy as well as the standards and criteria of the new Secondary
School Certificate and Profile. NCHE published its 2nd Annual Further and Higher
Education Statistics Report which included a survey of over 36 institutions being state,
state-dependent and independent education establishments. Furthermore to inform 5th
Form students on study opportunities in Malta a student guide entitled “What do you
want to be?” was also published by NCHE. On the other hand MQC embarked on
three research projects partly sponsored by Cedefop: A Bridge to the Future highlighting
Malta’s achievements in vocational training from 2002 to 2010; VET Policy Report
which indicates progress in the policy areas for vocational education and training as well
the ReferNet National Comparative Study on Malta’s National education and training
provision.
These key publications for 2010 reflect the coordination and gathering of an intensive
network of local and international experts and stakeholders. At the local level MCAST,
the University of Malta, ITS, ETC, the Malta Chamber of Commerce, Enterprise and
Industry, the General Workers Union, the Union Óaddiema Maqg˙udin, the Malta
Employers Association, the GRTU, the Confederation of Malta Trade Unions as well as
sectoral associations such as the Malta Printing Industry Association and the Hair and
Beauty Federation were among many other organizations with whom we worked very
closely. Through the offices of the Mutual Recognition Coordinators we established a
closer rapport with the twenty-six Competent Authorities governing our professional
qualifications. Two informal seminars and one annual conference were successfully held
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during 2010. Indeed stakeholders played a central role in the work of MQC particularly
in promoting and implementing the criteria and standards underlying our national
qualifications framework.
2010 was also marked by a record number of activities organised by MQC. The Annual
Report illustrates the main events held in Malta as well as those in which MQC and NCHE
participated in European and other international fora. The financial support granted
by the European Commission made it possible that each member of staff be given the
opportunity to engage in one or more international activities abroad. This was made
possible through the successful bidding for EU Projects as well as the active participation
in European Union Working groups such as the EQF Advisory Group, the meetings of
the Mutual Recognition Coordinators, the meetings for directors-general of vocational
education and training and higher education, the Bologna Follow-Up Group, Erasmus
Mundus, the ENIC–NARIC network and EU agencies such as Cedefop and the European
Training Foundation.
The Annual Report also delves into the various shapes of EU-funded projects as well
as peer learning activities led or partnered by MQC. These projects serve as tools for
continuous professional development as well as benchmarks for systems and processes
used in Malta particularly in further and higher education. The NQF-SQF, HEQ-Bridges,
INLearning, FIRST and EQF-SPREAD are among the key projects which enriched the
professional standards of our staff and enabled them to establish invaluable contacts and
experiences. MQC was also invited to offer support to the Greek and Portughese working
groups on their new national qualifications frameworks and it is expected that in 2011
Latvia, Cyprus and Bulgaria would also engage MQC on similar consultation processes.
In 2010, the two ESF projects VQPACK and Skills+ required intensive and extensive
administrative and financial backup as well as continuous experts’ advice, coordination of
events, design and publication of audio-visual material. We are now closing on these two
projects which will disseminate information on vocational training as a means to attract
more learners to lifelong learning and provide occupational standards in nine key sectors
linked to qualifications provided by public VET institutions. Parallel to these national and
international activities is the ongoing service which MQC through the offices of the Malta
Qualifications Recognition Information Centre (MQRIC) provides to over 2000 clients a
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year and issuing over 5000 statements on local and international Qualifications. When
in summer 2008 MQC took over this centre the total number of yearly statements stood
at under 2000. Today more and more people are increasingly aware of the importance
of ensuring that qualifications are recognised on the basis of transparency, adequate
workloads and quality assurance. These are among the basic indicators used by MQRIC
to assess transcripts, certificates and any other documentation required to validate awards.
Since 2008 MQRIC has had a success story with a yearly coverage of over 90% of
requested statements. Considering the very small staff complement that manages this
area, every year has been an added achievement.
During 2010 two ongoing activities of the National Coordination Point (NCP) related to
the European Qualifications Framework and the Bologna Process led to the organisation
of a number of information and discussion seminars. Through funds available from
the EU, a series of EQF seminars on learning outcomes were organised. Similarly the
Bologna Experts Group managed to organise three seminars by the end of 2010 and
five other activities in 2011 culminating with a conference in April and a final seminar in
May 2011. The Bologna and NCP seminars served to bond MQC and NCHE staff even
further. EUPA also offered continuous help in organising the Bologna events particularly
in attracting foreign speakers. One is pleased to report the growing participation of
officers from public and private training institutions. This was largely due to intensive
marketing, networking and publicity of all MQC and NCHE activities. The MQC and
NCHE websites also played an important role in attracting participants.
The year under review has seen a serious commitment by all members of staff to fulfil the
statutory obligations of the two organisations. Supported by two active governing boards
we managed to create a new symbioses, a new paradigm which will continue to strengthen
our country’s vocation to provide quality assured qualifications, updated information on
all foreign awards and valid research findings that will enable policy-makers to move our
education system to higher levels of excellence.
I expect in 2011 that the amendments to the Education Act and the publication of subsidiary
legislation will consolidate the strong academic and structural foundations of MQC and
NCHE under one national agency. The new agency will act as regulator to accreditation
quality assurance and licensing of all further and higher education programmes and
institutions. I am confident that capacity building in the two agencies will now serve to
meet future challenges especially those which will increase participation in post-secondary
and adult education. The increased responsibility of the ‘new’ agency will require added
financial and technical support. But most of all it will need to continue attracting foreign
funding, increase the capacity of its staff and offer information and good practice on
quality assurance to all training providers.
The learner is at heart of the agency’s operations. The services that the agency will offer
will largely determine whether or not Malta will move towards a knowledge-based society
based on effective measures responsive to the needs of the individual and the economy.
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Council Meetings 2010
Malta Qualifications Council
In 2010 there were a total of five Council Meetings. These were all held at the MQC
premises in St Lucia. The Council Meetings were held on the 26th January, 2nd March,
13th April, 18th May and on the 19th October. The meetings were attended by the Council
members including the Chairman of the Council Mr Joseph Abela Fitzpatrick and the
Chief Executive of the Council Dr James Calleja. The MQC Council Members represent
various sectors of education and industry in Malta including the Employment and Training
Corporation (ETC), the Malta College of Arts, Science and Technology (MCAST), the
Directorate for Quality and Standards, Quality Assurance Department, the University of
Malta, the Malta Employers Association (MEA) and the General Retailers and Traders
Union (GRTU).

Work Plan 2010
During the Council Meetings the Work Plan for 2010 was discussed. The main targets
outlined in the Work Plan 2010 were as follows • to contribute to the quality assurance of programmes and training activities in public
and private vocational education and training
• to level-rate qualifications of public and private training providers covering as many
single qualifications as possible
• to ensure that the Referencing Process is implemented by all training providers
• to strengthen the MQRIC through a more efficient and transparent process in the
recognition of local and foreign qualifications
• to transform the Office of the Mutual Recognition Coordinator into an efficient and
effective contact point for all Designated Authorities
• to introduce the validation of informal and non-formal education in compulsory
education, printing, agribusiness, beauty, care and building and construction sectors
• to have an interactive communication strategy that ensures greater efficiency in the
level-rating, accreditation, quality assurance and recognition of qualifications
• to organize activities that create greater awareness about MQC’s remit
• to participate in EU projects and activities as part of MQC’s continuous professional
development
• to ensure that the tools of the Bologna and Copenhagen Process contribute to greater
synergy between the two sectors in HEI.
The full Work Plan 2010 may be downloaded from the MQC website www.mqc.gov.mt

MQC Council Meeting held
on the 26th January 2010
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Board Meetings 2010
National Commission for Higher Education
A total of six board meetings were held in 201O. These meetings were
attended by the Chairman of NCHE Dr Philip Von Brockdorff and by the
Council Members. Among the topics discussed in these board meetings
were the National Careers Expo, the Higher Education Act, the NCHE
Higher and Further Education Statistics Survey, the Audit and Annual
Report, the business plan 2010-2011, the follow up on the University
Business Forum, the MATSEC comparability standards study, the
recruitment of the four new Commission Officer, the profiling of sixth
forms, the ESF project proposal, the draft amendment to the Education
Act, the merger of MQC/NCHE.
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Mission Statements
National Commission for Higher Education

Malta Qualifications Council
To oversee the development of the National Qualifications
Framework in the context of lifelong learning and to work in
partnership with learners, employers and training and education
providers to achieve and maintain excellence as a contribution
towards the national effort for competitiveness.

To promote more and better further and higher education to
empower all students with knowledge and skills for their future.

MQC/NCHE Council Members as on 31

st

December 2010

Malta Qualifications Council
Mr Joseph Abela Fitzpatrick
Mr Joseph Cutajar
Mr Emmanuel Zahra
Mr Joseph Farrugia
Ms Veronica Grech
Ms Charmaine Portelli
Ms Joan Micallef
Mr Vince Farrugia
Dr James Calleja

Chairman
Senior Manager - Training Service Division - ETC
Director - Institute of Mechanical Engineering - MCAST
Malta Employers Association
Registrar – University of Malta
Economic Officer – Economic Policy Division
Assistant Director - Directorate for Quality
and Standards, Quality Assurance Department
Director General – GRTU
Chief Executive

National Commission for Higher Education
Dr Philip Von Brockdorff
Mr Alexander Manché

Chairman
Deputy Chairman

Members
Professor Josef Bonnici
Dr Jennifer Cassingena Harper
Associate Professor Grace Grima
Dr Anna Mifsud Bonnici
Professor John Portelli
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Malta Qualifications Council /
National Commission for Higher Education
Staff List
as on 31st December 2010

Malta Qualifications Council
Dr James Calleja

Chief Executive

Mr Richard Curmi

Senior Manager

Ms Carmen Dalli

Finance and Administration Manager

Ms Valerie Attard

Communications Manager

Ms Josephine Sultana
Ms Shirley Micallef
Ms Beatrice Mizzi
Ms Jane Nind
Mr Alan Cauchi
Mr Mario Farrugia

Teacher/Acting Credential Evaluator
Recognition Officer and PA to the CEO
Executive Officer
Senior Clerk / Acting Credential Evaluator
Clerk
Support Staff

National Commission for Higher Education
Dr James Calleja

Acting Chief Executive

Ms Tanya Zammit

Operations Manager

Mr Matthew Agius

Commission Officer

Ms Debbie Lora Dimech

Commission Officer

Dr Maria Theresa Magro Scerri

Commission Officer

Ms Louisa Pace Kiomall

Commission Officer

Ms Christine Scholz

Commission Officer
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1. Raising the profile of the Malta Qualifications
Framework for Lifelong Learning
Protocols
During 2010 the following protocols were signed with various public and private training
institutes and higher education providers. MQC was represented in the signing of the
protocols by Mr Joseph Abela Fitzpatrick Chairman, Dr James Calleja Chief Executive
and Ms Doris Mangion Senior Manager. 22 protocols were signed in 2010 and this figure
is expected to double by the end of 2011. The Protocols will be reviewed on an Annual
basis.

The official signing of protocols
between training providers and MQC
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The official signing of protocols
between training providers and MQC

14th May 2010
Trinity Guildhall
Masquerade (Trinity Drama)
Philip Chircop (Trinity Music)

11th June 2010
Malta College of Arts, Science and Technology
Support and Supply Management Group
Key Training Services
Nefertiti Beauty Academy
MISCO

23rd June 2010

The official signing of protocols
between training providers and MQC

Johane Casabene Dance Conservatoire
Malta Society of Arts, Manufacturers and Commerce
Malta International Training Centre
STC Training
ECDL Malta
St Martin’s Institute of IT
Centre for Development Research and Training
Foundation for Human Resources Development
International School of Hairdressing
Chamber College

20th August 2010
Directorate for Lifelong Learning
Computer Domain
LearnKey
CareMalta
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ISCED
MQC also took the initiative to launch a consultation process with the National Office
of Statistics (NSO) to discuss the new ISCED 2011 and to reference the already existing
Malta Qualifications Framework to the ISCED 1997 and the ISCED 2011. This process
was launched at the end of 2009 and continued throughout 2010. This initiative taken
by MQC in collaboration with the MEEF, the Education Directorates and the ETC aims at
readdressing the data collection at all levels of education but in particular in establishing the
percentage of early school leavers and those participating in further and higher education.

Information Session Malta Employers’ Association –
12th February 2010
The Malta Qualifications Council was invited to address an Information Session organised
by the Malta Employers’ Association. The information session focused on the recent
developments of the Malta Qualifications Framework. The session focussed on the
Referencing Process and how qualifications will be referenced to the Malta Qualifications
Framework. The information session was held at the Phoenicia Hotel, the Mall, Floriana. Mr
Joseph Farrugia, MEA and MQC Council Member chaired the session. Dr James Calleja,
CEO, MQC and Mr Richard Curmi, Senior Manager, MQC delivered a presentation about
Standards and Qualifications. The seminar was very well attended with over 50 employers
from the public and private sector who attended the session. The session concluded with
a Question and Answer session.

Employers attending the MEA
Information Session

EQF/MQF Information Seminar at the Employment and Training
Corporation – Óal Far, 26th March 2010
This information seminar was held at the ETC premises in Hal Far. Ms Doris Mangion,
Senior Manager Standards and Qualifications and Mr Richard Curmi, Senior Manager
Assessment and Accreditation delivered presentations to a number of ETC staff members.
Ms Mangion spoke about the European Qualifications Framework (EQF), the Malta
Qualifications Framework (MQF), the Referencing Report, the level rating procedures and
the role of the Malta Qualifications Recognition Information Centre (MQRIC). There was
also a discussion about the accreditation of qualifications of Non-EU nationals by other
EU Member States. Mr Richard Curmi gave a presentation on non-formal and informal
learning and spoke about the work being carried out to establish Occupational Standards
in a number of sectors such as the printing industry.
Mr Richard Curmi, Senior Manager
MQC delivering his presentation
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NQF – Inclusive Project Meeting – MQC, Malta 28 – 30 April 2010
This two-day project meeting included a number of presentations and workshops as well as
a number of site visits. These included a presentation of the learning outcomes of Chance
B’s educational programme for confectioanire by Ms Marion Bock, a presentation on
the Cathalogue of Standards of the ‘Happy Farm’ project by Ms Tanya Ferlic and Ms
Aleska Knaflic Cijan, and a presentation on partial qualification/validation of experiences
as a method of assessment/certification by Mr Richard Curmi, Senior Manager, MQC.
Mr John Bartolo also briefed the project partners about the Pathway programme being
offered at the Malta College of Arts, Science and Technology. (MCAST). These site visits
included a visit to MCAST and a visit to the Kunsill Nazzjonali Persuni b’DiΩabiltà (KNPD) ,

The Project Partners who attended
the 2-day meeting

Information Meeting in collaboration with KNPD
Waterfront Hotel, Ta’ Xbiex, 13th July 2010
MQC has also initiated dialogue on inclusive Education in collaboration with the
Kummissjoni Nazzjonali Persuni b’DiΩabilità (KNPD). Around 20 participants were present
for this information meeting. The meeting was chaired by Mr Joe Camilleri, Chairman
KNPD. Dr James Calleja Chief Executive and Mr Richard Curmi Senior Manager briefed
the participants about the importance of the National Qualifications Framework.
Mr Richard Curmi, Senior Manager
MQC delivering his presentation
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National Coordination Point Meetings
One of the major goals achieved in 2010 was to build on the existing information strategy
about the Malta Qualifications Framework and the referencing process to specific target
groups and to civil society in general. This goal was accomplished through co-financing
from the European Commission to MQC as the National Coordination Point for the EQF.
This co-financing formed part of a grant of the Lifelong Learning Transversal programme.
Throughout 2010 three information seminars were held. These were held on the 7th July
2010, the 3rd September and the 10th September 2010. 60 participants attended for
each seminar. The target audience for these seminars included higher education officials,
teaching staff and representatives from trade unions and workers representatives. Each
seminar allowed space for a Question and Answer session. Various foreign speakers
were specifically invited to deliver a presentation for each session. The deliverables
produced through this co-financing included the production of 6 information leaflets on
the EQF, aimed at various target audiences, as well as an info-DVD on the EQF. These
werepresented to the participants.
Dr James Calleja, Chief Executive
addressing participants during an
NCP seminar

Participants during an NCP seminar
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National Coordination Point Activities 2010

A Learning Outcomes Approach to Implement the EQF
12th July 2010
Audience
60 participants attended this seminar. These included Directors and
Human Resources Managers from various Public Institutions.
Foreign Speaker Mr Vincent McBride, European Training Foundation
Topics

Qualifications Frameworks: Facilitating Recognition of Degrees and
mobility of workers, students and capital
The Referencing Exercise and implications for recruitment purposes.

3rd September 2010
Audience
Over 50 participants from the field of state vocational and higher
education attended this seminar. The participants came from various
public institutes including the Malta College of Arts, Science and
Technology (MCAST), the University of Malta (UOM) and the Institute
for Tourism Studies (ITS).
Foreign Speaker Mr Loukas Zahilas, European Centre for the Development of Vocational
Training (CEDEFOP)
Topics

Participants from state
training institutions
attending the NCP
seminar

Developments in Qualifications at a European Level and the shift to
Learning Outcomes
Implementing the Referencing Exercise for local, state, vocational and
higher education Institutions.

10th September 2010
Audience
Over 50 participants attended this seminar. These participants came
form a number of private and public training institutions.
Foreign Speaker Mr Sean O’Reilly, National Qualifications Authority, Ireland
Topics

Qualifications Reform across Europe – Lessons learnt from Ireland and
Implications to Training Providers
Implementing the Referencing Exercise for local Private and Training
Institutions

The NCP information seminar
for private and public training
institutions
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National Coordination Point Activities 2011

Mr Sean O’Reilly addressing
participants during an NCP seminar

7th February 2011
Audience
Trade Unions and Workers Representatives
Foreign Speaker Mr Hermann Nehls, Confederation of German Trade Unions
Topics

The role of Trade Unions in developing Qualifications
The impact of short training courses on the NQF: enhancing lifelong
learning and CPD.

13th April 2011
Audience
High Education Officials, Education Policy Makers, Education Officers,
Directors of Education, College Principals, Heads of Schools and other
educational staff involved in public, private and church compulsory
education.

Dr James Calleja delivering his
presentation to representatives
of trade unions and workers
organisations

Foreign Speaker Ms Marta Santanicchia, ISFOL
Topics

The Inclusion of Compulsory Education in Qualifications Frameworks
Recognising all forms of learning: validating non-academic aspects of
compulsory education

20th April 2011
Audience
Employers and Human Resources Personnel
Foreign Speaker Dr Jim Murry, National Qualifications Authority, Ireland
Topics

Developments in Qualifications at a European level and impact on
employees: experience in Ireland
Valuing all Learning: investing in our workers
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The panel of speakers who
contributed to the launch
of the Occupational Standards

Launch of Occupational Standards in the Printing Industry March 2010
During this year MQC has also launched the Occupational Standards in the Printing
Industry and commenced work on establishing Occupational Sectors in a number of other
spheres including agribusiness, care, hair and beauty, photography, the band-clubs sector,
the youth sector an auto-surveyors.

The participants attending the launch at the Vivaldi Hotel
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National Commission for Higher Education

Launch of the University-Business Thematic Forum – 5th March 2010
In collaboration with the University of Malta and the Chamber of Commerce, Enterprise and
Industry NCHE launched the first University-Business Thematic Forum on Digital Games
Production on 5th March 2010. The Digital Games Production industry can generate and
employ a wide variety of local talent from the arts, science and technology, social sciences
and education fields amongst others. Many skills already exist in our local talent-pool.
The forum served to stimulate discussion on this new growth area by: presenting different
views on long-term developments abroad and in Malta; putting forward new teaching and
research initiatives being undertaken; analysing ideas for collaboration with the business
sectors; and assessing the future skills base needed to support its growth.

Profiling of Sixth Forms
NCHE has embarked on a project regarding the post-secondary academic education
sector, which started in 2010. This project will draw up detailed profiles of all nine state,
church and independent post-secondary academic institutions in Malta, involving all
stakeholders in the field. The study will produce an invaluable set of information to be
used as a basis and analysis by policy-makers in the field. The study collects data from
students, student representatives, teachers, parents and administration of the respective
institutions involving their views on various aspects at this level of education as well as on
the particular institutions themselves. Aspects being tackled include amongst others the
MATSEC system, methods of tuition, methods of assessment, student representation,
extra-curricular involvement, institutions’ facilities, staff development, financial aspects,
student support, and the socio-economic background of students. Questionnaires have
been distributed in all participating institutions addressing the stakeholders concerned.
Furthermore NCHE held interviews with the administrators of institutions. The project will
involve lecturers at the University of Malta as well as employers, parents’ associations and
trade unions in order to assess their perceptions of different Sixth Form compositions and
enable NCHE to review the progression of students within this level of education and its
adequacy as a basis for furthering one’s education. In recognising that more students need
to be encouraged in engaging in further and higher education, NCHE will use the findings
and analysis of this project, to bring proposals, best practices and recommendations with
regards to the improvement of this level of education to light.

Working group on alternatives to MATSEC
In October 2010 the NCHE was tasked by the Minister of Education, Employment and
the Family to convene a working group, consisting of relevant experts in the field, in order
to evaluate the success or otherwise of the MATSEC (Matriculation Certificate) system
and suggest alternatives to its use in Malta. The members of the Working Group which
is being chaired by Dr. Philip von Brockdorff are Dr. James Calleja, Prof. Grace Grima,
Prof. Frank J. Ventura, Dr. Martin Musumeci, Dr. Doreen Spiteri, and Mr. Andrew W. J.
Mamo. Since October several meetings have been convened and discussions and research
are presently being carried out to consider the positive and negative aspects of the current
MATSEC exam, to compare the MATSEC system with alternative examination systems
used overseas at similar educational levels, to consider the positive and negative aspects
of each of such overseas examination systems in the Maltese context, to suggest short
and long-term key areas of improvement to the current MATSEC system, with the aim
of facilitating progression through educational levels and to outline the projected positive
outcomes of such changes. The purpose of the Working Group is ultimately that of
reaching the EU 2020 targets of increasing tertiary educational attainment from 22% to
35% and decreasing early school leavers from 39% to 29%. A report on the research,
findings and proposals will be presented to the Hon. Minister of Education, Employment
and the Family by April 2011.

Since October several
meetings have been
convened and discussions
and research are presently
being carried out to
consider the positive and
negative aspects of the
current MATSEC exam,
to compare the MATSEC
system with alternative
examination systems
used overseas at similar
educational levels...
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Survey to validate participation rate in further and higher education
In response to the need to improve the accuracy of estimating participation rates in further
and higher education in Malta, NCHE embarked on a project in 2010 jointly with MEEF
which is aimed at assessing the validity of data sources. The study is based on a survey to
validate data sources and will compare the participation rate obtained from the existing
methodology based on data provided by institutions with the results that will emerge from
the survey. The survey sample will comprise approximately 1,000 randomly selected
students who have completed secondary education in 2008 to guarantee a margin of
error less than 3%. Moreover, the sample will be stratified by gender and school type to
ensure a true representation of the population of secondary school leavers. Statistical tests
will be employed to identify where deficiencies are significant if they are found to exist.

Development of a Quality Assurance Framework
During summer 2010, NCHE prepared an ESF project which it submitted for funding.
The project focuses on building the necessary capacity to quality assure institutions and
programmes in further and higher education in collaboration with the Malta Qualifications
Council. The project also envisages a link between quality assurance, guidance and
counselling services and skills gap analysis. Once approved the project will enable NCHE
and MQC to build the structures to ensure quality in all learning experiences in further
and higher education, provide the necessary guidelines to guidance teachers, officers and
counsellors to make learning more attractive and relevant to the labour market through
researched skills gap analysis.
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2. Participation in European initiatives
on vocational training and higher education
Malta Qualifications Council
Fifth Meeting of the EQF Advisory Group
Brussels, 1-2 February 2010
The purpose of the EQF Advisory Group was to address issues related to the development
of the EQF and specifically the various indicators that develop this process such as
the referencing reports, the relationship with employability, higher education, quality
assurance, lifelong learning, access and permeability. The meeting also discussed the UK
national referencing report, the revised ISCED and Directove 36/2005 on the recognition
of professional qualifications. The meeting was attended by Dr James Calleja, Chief
Executive, MQC.

Conference New Skills for New Jobs
Brussels, 4th February 2010
The aim of the conference was to discuss the key findings of the expert group report on
New Skills for New Jobs and give views on how to further develop the skills and job
agenda. In addition the demand and supply of jobs and skills in the EU was also presented
for discussion. The conference was attended by Dr James Calleja, Chief Executive, MQC.

First Partners’ Meeting – FIRST (Financial Services EQF Translators
in EU) Project – Edinburgh, 17-18 February 2010
The main objectives of the First Partners’ meeting were to introduce the partnership
and the project partners. The contractual and administrative issues were discussed in this
meeting. The partners also decided on the way forward on how to translate the European
Qualifications Framework descriptors into job profiles in the banking industry. Each of the
partners’ tasks, outputs and deadlines were also outlined. All the project partners attended
the meeting including MQC and the Institute of Financial Services in Malta. MQC was
represented by Ms Carmen Dalli, Finance and Administration Manager.

The partners also decided
on the way forward on how
to translate the European
Qualifications Framework
descriptors into job profiles
in the banking industry

Bologna Follow-Up Group Meeting
Madrid, 18-19 February 2010
Malta was represented by Dr Philip Von Brockdorff Chairman, NCHE and Dr James
Calleja, Chief Executive, MQC. Topics for discussion during this meeting included the
application for membership in the Bologna Process by Kazakhstan, the independent
assessment of the Bologna Process, the Budapest/Vienna Declaration, the EHEA
information and promotion network, the EQAR register committee and the mobility
benchmark.

Meeting of the Contact Points – Directive 2005/36/EC
for the Recognition of Professional Qualifications
Brussels, 25th February 2010
The purpose of this meeting was to discuss the role of Contact Points which are entrusted
with specific tasks under Article 57 of the Professional Qualifications Directive. The
Contact Points discussed how well the legislation has been achieving its objectives and
whether it has done so at a reasonable cost. MQC was represented for this meeting by Ms
Shirley Micallef, Recognition Officer.
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Conference to launch the Greek National Qualifications Framework
Athens, 24-25 February 2010
Dr James Calleja, Chief Executive MQC was invited as guest of the Ministry of Education,
Lifelong Learning and Religious Affairs to address the National Conference on the Greek
NQF held on the 25th of February and to participate on the 24th February in a meeting
on the design of qualifications frameworks with High level officials from the Ministry of
Education and social partners.
The topics covered mainly focused on:
• The design of an NQF
• The key stakeholders involved in the design of an NQF
• The resources needed to coordinate such an initiative
• The role of industrial sectors, Unions, businesses and social partners
• Learning outcomes
• The impact of the Bologna and Copenhagen processes on an NQF
• The European tools and their application in an NQF
• The level rating process
• Occupational standards
• Publicity on NQF
• Policy documents.

Dr Calleja stressed
the importance of
integrating within such
framework a learning
outcomes approach to all
qualifications as well as
the use of European tools
such as the credits systems
(ECTS/ECVET), the
quality assurance indicators
(EQAR and the EQARF)
and the diploma and
certificate supplements.

The conference was inaugurated by the Minister of Education Lifelong Learning and
Religious Affairs Anna Diamantopoulou and was attended by over 100 participants from
the education sector and from agencies and businesses from across the country. A number
of participants represented social partners.
Dr Calleja delivered a presentation in which he underlined the key factors that would
lead to a successful completion of a national qualifications framework namely: political
support, institutional backing, a detailed and time-framed programme, resources and
active participation of stakeholders. Dr Calleja stressed the importance of integrating
within such framework a learning outcomes approach to all qualifications as well as the
use of European tools such as the credits systems (ECTS/ECVET), the quality assurance
indicators (EQAR and the EQARF) and the diploma and certificate supplements. The
use of European tools will facilitate mobility, transparency and transferability. Dr Calleja
then delved into the key steps that MQC took to design the qualifications framework, the
stakeholders involved and the resources needed to establish a qualifications framework
which in its inclusivity requires the support of the widest possible sections of training
institutions, businesses and social partners. Dr Calleja made reference to the rationale of
the main sections of the Referencing Report and the MQCs initiatives to validate informal
and non-formal learning in the context of a national qualifications framework. Finally he
referred to the agenda New Skills for New Jobs and in particular to the recommendations
linking employability to qualifications.

Bologna Anniversary Ministerial Conference
Budapest/Vienna, 11-12 March 2010
The purpose of the Bologna Ministerial Anniversary Meeting was to celebrate the end of
the successful Bologna Process and launch the new European Higher Education Area.
Furthermore, the meeting served to adopt the Budapest/Vienna Declaration and the
Bologna Policy Forum Statement. Both documents highlight the Ministers commitment
towards the promotion of the EHEA and support towards making the EHEA the best
Higher Education system in the world. The Maltese participants inclyded the Hon. Dolores
Cristina, Minister of Education, Employment and the Family, Mr Bryan Magro, Head of
the Ministry’s Secretariat, Professor Alfred Vella, Pro-Rector of the University of Malta,
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Mr Carl Grech, President Kunsill Studenti Universitarji and Dr James Calleja Bologna
Follow Up Coordinator and Chief Executive MQC.

Meeting Group of Coordinators for the Recognition of Professional
Qualifications – Brussels, 18th March 2010
The purpose of this meeting was to discuss the role of the Group of Coordinators. A
list of topics was discussed to evaluate the Professional Qualifications Directive. Further
discussions dealt with how effective and how efficient this legislation has been, now that
this legislation has been introduced at European level and implemented at national level.
This meeting was attended by Ms Shirley Micallef Assistant to the Mutual Recognition
Coordinator.

CEDEFOP Regional Meeting ReferNet Southern Members
Rome, 18-19 March 2010
This meeting was the third and last regional meeting in 2010. Its main purpose was to
ensure a follow up, together with ReferNet group members, of the implementation of
the activities foreseen in the 2010 Workplan, and to consult the members on the draft
workplan for 2011. All sessions focused on two issues: quality and visibility. An important
discussion was organized around ‘ReferNet beyond 2011’. Working sessions were also
devoted to the ReferNet page on the CEDEFOP new web portal and to the functionalities
offered by the new extranet workspace for the Southern members. MQC was represented
by Ms Valerie Attard, Communications Manager.

ReferNet Representatives and
Coordinators from the Southern
Regional Group

Team II Meting of the Workshop on the Recognition of Joint
Programmes organized by the European Consortium for
Accreditation (ECA) in Higher Education – ENIC and NARICs
Programme – Warsaw, 25-26 March 2010
The objective of the workshop was to discuss how joint programmes and joint degrees
can be facilitated by the procedures used by quality assurance and accreditation agencies.
Furthermore, the recognition of a joint programme in one country doesn’t necessarily
entail recognition in the other countries concerned. This may lead to recognition problems
regarding the degrees awarded by the joint programme. The workshop additionally
presented how joint programmes can improve the recognition of their degrees and how
recognition authorities, the ENIC/NARIC network currently evaluates these degrees. Dr
James Calleja, Chief Executive MQC was invited to attend this meeting by the Higher
Education Policy Unit, Ministry of Education, Flanders Belgium.
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NQF/SQF Project Partners

First Partners’ Meeting of the NQF-SQF Project
Munich, 30 – 31 March 2010
The objective of the First Partners’ meeting was to introduce the overall objectives of
the NQF-SQF Project and to explain the work packages and each partner’s role within
the separate work packages in the project. The main deliverables of this project are the
creation of a tool as a common standard for referencing the NQF’s and the SQFs (the
employability grid), a study of the referencing of NQFs, a report on the referencing of
SQFs and a final report which will be presented to the EQF Advisory Group which is a
synthesis report of both studies and a set of recommendations on the referencing process
which will complement the existing referencing criteria, with a special focus on sectoral
qualifications. MQC contributed to all the work packages and will be a leader of the Work
Package which includes the final report. MQC was represented in this meeting by Ms
Doris Mangion, Senior Manager Standards and Qualifications.

Meeting of Directors-General for Vocational Education and Training
organised by the Spanish Presidency
Zaragoza, 2-4 May 2010
The purposes of the Directors-General Vocation Education and Training Meeting were to
discuss the state-of-play of the Copenhagen process particularly ECVET and EQAVET,
cooperation between the education system and the different production services (industry),
and the key indicators for forthcoming Bruges Ministerial Communiqué of VET Ministers
(2010). The meeting was attended by Mr Paul Attard, Advisor, Ministry of Education,
Employment and the Family and Dr James Calleja, Chief Executive, MQC.

Spanish Presidency Conference ‘The Value of Competences in
Vocational Education and Training – Zaragoza, 5th May 2010
This conference included a number of panel discussions and workshops. The conference
was a follow up to the Directors-General Vocation Education and Training meeting,
organised by the Spanish Presidency, and re-established that Malta is firmly on the right
track in its implementation of the qualifications framework and in designing a VET system
which is flexible and responsive to industry and labour market needs and challenges. The
conference was attended by Dr James Calleja, Chief Executive, MQC.

Second Partners’ Meeting of the FIRST Project: Financial Services
EQF Translators in EU – Warsaw, 19th May 2010
The main objectives of the Second Partners’ meeting were to discuss the results of the
project so far including the Process Analysis of the Compliance, Savings and Investment
and SME and the project website and to discuss the way forward. All the project partners
were represented during this meeting. This meeting was attended by Ms Doris Mangion,
Senior Manager, MQC.
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INLearning Project Partners

INLearning Third Partners’ Meeting – Validating all Learning for an
Inclusive Society – Chieti 27-28 May 2010
The aim of the INLearning Third Partners’ meeting was mainly to delve into and discuss
in detail the remaining proposed deliverables of the project, while also to evaluate the
outcomes of the work done and the results achieved by the project’s consortium. Indeed,
the project’s main goal, the Lifepass - a tool (pendrive) documenting an individual’s
experiences, with the possibility of uploading all relevant material and hence giving more
credibility to the declared competences, was discussed and the template to be developed
was agreed upon. The lifepass manual was also one of the topics on the agenda of this
meeting. The piloting of the tool was also dealt with. The project partners agreed that
a template should be developed for the piloting process and also for the piloting report.
Furthermore, assessment methods, the external and internal evaluation, together with the
administrative and financial aspects and issues of this project were dealt with.
The importance of the project’s web portal and the dissemination of the project were also
discussed and instructions given. Finally, the dates for the last project partners’ meeting
and the final conference were set, together with the targets and deadlines for all partners
to adhere to. MQC was represented by Mr Richard Curmi, Senior Manager, Ms Carmen
Dalli, Finance and Administration Manager, Ms Valerie Attard, Communications Manager
and Ms Sylvana Caruana, Senior Clerk.

INLearning project partners during
the Third Partners’ meeting

Sixth Meeting of the EQF Advisory Group
Brussels, 9-10 June 2010
The purpose of the sixth EQF Advisory Group meeting was to address European
cooperation relevant to the implementation of the EQF/NQFs, NQFs sectoral
developments, developments within the Bologna and Copenhagen processes as well as
issues related to the external policy cooperation related to the EQF, the review of Directive
36/2005 and the need for competences and a common language for education and work.
This meeting was attended by Dr James Calleja, Chief Executive MQC.
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Meeting of the Group of Coordinators for the Recognition of
Professional Qualifications – Brussels, 17th June 2010
The purpose of this meeting was to discuss the state of play of the experience reports
addressed to competent authorities and to coordinators. The meeting was attended by
representatives from the EU Member States. The issue of the Professional Card was also
discussed during this meeting. MQC was represented by Ms Shirley Micallef, Assistant to
the Mutual Recognition Coordinator.

17th Joint Meeting of the ENIC and NARIC Networks
Sevres, France, 20-22 June 2010
The joint meeting of the ENIC and NARIC Networks (European Networks of Information
Centres in the European Region and the National Academic Recognition Information
Centres in the European Union) was a platform for personnel from both networks
to update and share information in the area of qualification/degree recognition. The
networks furthermore established a new network on the recognition of prior learning.
The terms of reference will be drafted by the ENIC Bureu and the NARIC Advisory
Board. Another project that was presented was CoRe2 which stands for competences in
education and recognition. The meeting took place at the Centre international d’etudes
pedagogiques (CIEP) which is home to the French ENIC/NARIC centre.

It is in implementing the
referencing process that
the value of the EQF will
be able to seep into the
structures and systems of
education at all levels.

Over 50 participants attended the meeting. MQC was represented by Dr James Calleja,
Chief Executive, MQC and Ms Jane Nind, MQRIC Officer. Dr James Calleja also delivered
one of the two key-note speeches during this meeting. Dr Calleja was the invited guest
of the TIPTOE/EQF international project. Dr Calleja’s speech looked into the process of
setting up a framework of qualifications, of referencing such a framework to the EQF and
of initiating a process to transform theory into practice. Dr Calleja referred to four major
challenges namely the impact of policy design across all levels and sectors of education
and training, the need to communicate the European tools and adapt and adopt such
instruments, the accreditation, quality assurance and licensing processes needed to
ensure that structures lead to implementation and ownership by all stakeholders and
finally the challenge to raise the profile of vocational training and attract learners to
qualifications based on a combination of theory and practice. Reference was also made
to the CION document New Skills for New Jobs. Dr Calleja also delved into the impact
of the agenda of this document on VET and qualifications frameworks namely increase
in quality, transparency, flexibility and access to E&T opportunities. He then gave an
overview of the impact of the Referencing Report which Malta presented to the CION in
September 2009 stating that the real implementation of the Report will take much longer
than its actual preparation. It is in implementing the referencing process that the value
of the EQF will be able to seep into the structures and systems of education at all levels.

NARIC Online Training Course on Credential Evaluation –
Evaluation of Foreign Courses and Certificates
Paris, 23rd June 2010
NARIC Online Training Course - Evaluation of Foreign Courses Diplomas and
Qualifications was offered to staff members of ENIC and NARIC Offices. The primary
target group for such a course were all the interested staff of ENIC and NARIC officers
with limited experience in the field or for those who have been working in this field for a
relatively short period of time. In fact all the participants in this course have been engaged
with the ENIC and NARIC offices for the last year or the last two years.
The course was co-ordinated by the Dutch NARIC (Nuffic) in cooperation with the UK
NARIC and the Centre NARIC Frances, with the support from the European Commission.
This was the seventh year that this on-line course has being offered. The course leader
and co-ordinator was Ms Stephanie Saavedra (Nuffic).
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This on-line course was a combination of two particular approaches, i.e. distance learning
approach with a face-to-face training session day following the ENIC/NARIC Joint Meeting
in June 2010 in France. This course was attended by Ms Josephine Sultana, MQRIC
officer, Ms Jane Nine MQRIC Officer and Ms Shirley Micallef, Assistant to the Mutual
Recognition Coordinator. At the end of the session all the participants who completed all
the modules were presented with a Certificate of Completion awarded and accredited by
the Netherlands NUFFIC, UK NARIC, and CieP, France ENIC – NARIC.

First Project Meeting EQF-SPREAD - Proposals for the
implementation and development of the Sectorial and National
Qualifications Frameworks – Amsterdam, 24-25 June 2010
The main objective of the EQF-SPREAD project is to propose, from the point of view of
the labour market –represented by public administrations, social partners, companies and
training centres-, a methodology and a tool-set for the implementation and development
of the EQF into the national and sectorial frameworks, taking into account the following
aspects: the experience from the countries which already have established a NQF and a
SQF, the learning outcomes from the 8 EQF levels, the main occupations from the most
relevant economic sectors (agriculture, industry, services), the education and VET systems,
and the formal, non-formal and informal learning. The First Project Meeting was attended
by representatives from the eight partners. MQC was represented by Mr Richard Curmi,
Senior Manager and Mr Alan Cauchi.

The main objective of the
EQF-SPREAD project is to
propose, from the point of
view of the labour market
–represented by public
administrations, social
partners, companies and
training centres...

Visit to the Universite de Pau et des Pays de l’Adour (UPPA)
Pau, 28-29 June 2010
The purpose of the visit was to witness a Jury in the process of validating informal and
non-formal learning in higher education leading to a Master’s degree level. Meetings were
also organised with senior officials of the University including the Rector, the head of the
Department of Validation of Assets and the head of the Lifelong Learning programme.
Malta was represented by Prof Alfred Vella Pro-Rector University of Malta and Dr James
Calleja, Chief Executive MQC. The visit was coordinated by the Department of Validation
of Assets of the University of Pau (UPPA).

Peer Learning Activity: How can the Learning Outcomes Approach,
NQFs and Quality Assurance best support Lifelong Learning? –
Istanbul, 28-29 June 2010
The Peer Learning Activity had the following three objectives:
1.		to discuss the role of qualifications in Lifelong Learning
2.		to investigate how learning outcomes establish standards so that students progress
from one path to another
3.		to discuss how NQFs and learning outcomes influence Quality Assurance
The audience was composed of 70 Turkish representatives, representatives from 25 EU
Member States, representatives from 2 EFTA countries and representatives from 2 EU
applicant countries. MQC was represented by Ms Doris Mangion, Senior Manager, MQC.
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The deliberations served
as the basis for draft
conclusions which were
later submitted for
adoption by the Council of
the Ministers of Education
in November 2010.

Seminar for Ministers of Compulsory Education
Brussels, 9th July 2010
The purpose of the Seminar was to delve into the policy strategies of EU Member States
on the problem of early school leavers and the level of mastery of basic skills which both
remain at the core of shared preoccupations in most EU Member States. The deliberations
served as the basis for draft conclusions which were later submitted for adoption by
the Council of the Ministers of Education in November 2010. Dr James Calleja Chief
Executive MQC represented the Minister of Education, Employment and the Family the
Hon. Dolores Cristina.

Meeting of the Bologna Follow-up Group Meeting
Belgium 24-25 August 2010
The meeting commenced with the outcomes of proceedings of the previous BFUG
meeting held in Madrid in February 2010. During this meeting information on the EHEA
website was given by the Bologna Secretariat. The meeting also included a proposal for
written procedures on language regime for ministerial conferences. Participants were also
invited to comment on the Leauven/Louvain-la-Neuve agenda 2009-2012 Work Plan.
The meeting also focused on issues such as mobility, the implementation of the Bologna
process, the network of experts in Student Support in Europe (NESSIE) the Recognition of
Prior Learning (RPL) network and qualifications frameworks. This meeting was attended
by Dr James Calleja, Chief Executive, MQC.

Second Partners’ Meeting – NQF-SQF
Ede-Wageningen, The Netherlands, 6-7 September 2010
The scope of the Second Partners’ meeting was to discuss the status quo of the work
packages which started namely Work Package 1 project management, Work Package 2
the Employability Grid, Work Package 7 the EQF information divide and Work Package
8 the Project’s Quality Management. Moreover Work Packages 3 and 4 will be planned
and tasks assigned. The main issue was to discuss the Employability Grid which makes
part of Work Package 2 and Work Packages 3 to 6 depend on this result. MQC is the
Work Package leader of Work Package 6. MQC was represented by Ms Doris Mangion,
Senior Manager.

Meeting of Directors-General for Vocational Education
and Training organised by the Belgian Presidency
Genval, Belgium, 20-21 September 2010
The purpose of the DG-VET meeting was to discuss the state-of-play of the Copenhagen
process particularly the European tools, cooperation between VET and the education
system and the key indicators for the Bruges Ministerial Communiqué of VET Ministers.
The meeting was attended by Dr James Calleja, Chief Executive, MQC. Dr Calleja was
also invited to chair a workshop during the meeting on Sustainable Partnerships.

Meeting of the Group of Coordinators for the Recognition of
Professional Qualifications – Brussels, 27th September 2010
The meeting was attended by Ms Shirley Micallef Assistant to the Mutual Recognition
Coordinator. The meeting focused on the Internal Market Scoreboard which was published
on the 21st September 2010. This publication devoted particular attention to the effective
application of the Professional Qualifications Directive. European citizens are increasingly
mobile and they expect automatic recognition of professional qualifications obtained. The
Professional Recognition Directive can only explore the full benefits if all Member States
transposed this legislation into their national law and apply it properly.
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HEQ Bridges: Building Bridges between EQF and EHEA
Rouen, France, 30 September - 1 October 2010
This was the third steering committee meeting of the project HEQ Bridges. The meeting
focused on the deliverables of the various work packages which included the work on the
publication entitled the European Journal of Qualifications, the questionnaires, as well
as monitoring and evaluation of the project. This meeting was attended by the project
coordinator ACPART and the project partners. MQC was represented by Ms Doris
Mangion, Senior Manager.

EQF Advisory Group
Leuven/ Brussels, 12th October 2010
This meeting was attended by Dr James Calleja, Chief Executive MQC. The meeting
was held at the Leuven Institute for Ireland in Europe. The meeting discussed the latest
implementations of the European Qualifications Framework at National and European
level. The previous meeting was held on the 9th June and this meeting was also a follow
up to the meeting held in June. The agenda included recent developments in European
cooperation in the field of education and training, a synthesis of national developments
related to the implementation of the EQF, a presentation and discussion of the French
referencing report, the state of play and Commission initiatives on the validation of
informal and non-formal learning. Other items on the agenda included a discussion on
competences and a common language for education and work, improvement of the EQF
referencing process and ICT developments for the EQF. Participants were also presented
with statistical information on the National Qualifications Frameworks in relation to ISCED.
The meeting also included the review of the Directive on the Recognition of Regulated
Professional Qualifications. (2005/36). Developments of the Bologna and Copenhagen
process were also discussed.
During this meeting a discussion on the future of peer learning activities on learning
outcomes and on national referencing to the EQF was also included. The meeting
concluded with information on the policy dialogue with Australia and a presentation of
future presidency events related to the EQF implementation.

Eight Plenary Annual Meeting European Network of Reference and Expertise in VET (ReferNet)
Thessaloniki, 14-15 October 2010
This year the focus of the Plenary Meeting was on exchange and communication. This
was the last opportunity for the network to share feedback in a Plenary meeting before
the next Framework Partnership Agreement is designed.
The meeting incorporated two workshops as well as two open space sessions. During the
open space sessions participants set their own agenda by selecting and presenting issues,
which they personally perceive as important.
ReferNet members were given the opportunity to display their publications during the
meeting. There was also the opportunity for individual meetings. ReferNet Malta was
represented by Ms Valerie Attard, Communications Manager MQC and Ms Carmen Dalli
Finance and Administration Manager, MQC.

ReferNet Coordinators and
Representatives attending the
Plenary Meeting
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Bologna Process and EQF Implementation - Development
of Qualifications Frameworks - Joint Meeting of National
Correspondents (QF-EHEA) and National Coordination Points
(EQF) – Strasbourg, 26th October 2010
The purpose of this meeting convened by the Council of Europe was to bring together
the Bologna and the Copenhagen processes represented by the QF-EHEA and the EQF
respectively to promote a wider national dialogue in the process to set up and maintain
qualifications frameworks at all levels of the education system. Dr James Calleja, Bologna
Expert/Coordinator Malta was invited to deliver a presentation on the legal aspects and
role of stakeholders in the self-certification and referencing process in Malta.

The purpose of this
meeting was to look back
on the finished tasks
carried out so far and
build on the strengths
and weaknesses of
the partnership, while
discussing the methods
of assessment to be
carried out on the
piloting exercise.

Third Partners’ Meeting of the NQF-Inclusive Project - Accreditation
and Certification of basic vocational education for disadvantaged
people via NQF - Copenhagen, 10 – 12 November 2010
This was the Third Partners’ Meeting for the Transfer of Innovation Project – Accreditation
and Certification of basic vocational education for disadvantaged people via NQF (NQF
Inclusive). The purpose of this meeting was to look back on the finished tasks carried out
so far and build on the strengths and weaknesses of the partnership, while discussing the
methods of assessment to be carried out on the piloting exercise.
The meeting was held partly at the Crown Hotel in Vesterbrogade and partly at Glad School
of Copenhagen. It was attended by all the partners on the project. These were Austria
(Chance B), Belgium (EASPD), Malta (MQC and MCAST), Nordic countries (Nordon)
and Slovenia (VDC Polz). Other participants to the meeting were four students and their
two tutors from Austria, two students and their tutor from Malta and two representatives
from Glad School. MQC was represented by Mr Richard Curmi, Senior Manager and Ms
Carmen Dalli Finance and Administration Manager.

Erasmus Mundus – Bridge Kick-Off Meeting
Rome, 11-12 November 2010
The project meeting was represented by Ms Josephine Sultana and Ms Jane Nind –
MQRIC Officers within the Malta Qualifications Recognition Information Centre, MQC.
The meeting was held at Punto Nazionale di Contatto (PNC) in Rome. PNC is the
coordinator of this project. The aim of the project is to create employability for graduates
who have obtained the Erasmus Mundus Qualification and are confronting difficulties to
get these qualifications recognised. The partners participating in this project hail from
Italy, Estonia, Spain, Portugal and Malta.

Meeting on the Portuguese Qualifications Frameworks
Lisbon, 16-18 November 2010
Dr James Calleja, Chief Executive MQC was invited as advisor/speaker to the National
Qualifications Authority of Portugal on the setting up of the Portuguese National
Qualifications Framework and its referencing to the EQF.
The meeting was split into three parts: the first meeting was held with the authorities
of the NQA to discuss the comments sent by Dr Calleja on the draft document of the
Portuguese National Qualifications Framework (PNQF); the second meeting included
the participation as a key-note speaker in a conference on the National Qualifications
Framework of Portugal to which over 280 persons participated. The conference was
convened by the ANQ Portugal (National Qualifications Agency) with the aim of discussing
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the draft Portuguese National Qualifications Framework in the context of the development
of qualifications frameworks in Europe, the experiences of Member States and the
reference of learning outcomes, mobility and transparency. The third meeting was held to
assess the outcomes of the conference and identify changes within the referencing draft
document. The other chosen expert was Mr Mike Coles (UK).

Golf-Stand First Partners’ Meeting – European Occupational
Standards for Golf – Birmingham 9-10 November 2010
The purpose of this kick-off meeting was to give the opportunity to get to know all the
partners involved in the project as well as to present and discuss the whole project, the
expected outcomes to be developed, the technical work packages and time-lines, the
financial and administrative rules, the working methodologies as well as the role and
responsibilities of each of the partners during the next 24 months of the project’s activity.
The project will produce a range of indispensable European occupational standards
aiming at defining the competences, skills and knowledge needed for those working in
the sector as golf professionals. SkillsActive is the Project Coordinator whilst PGAs of
Europe is the Technical Leader of the project. MQC was represented by Ms Valerie
Attard, Communications Manager.

Golf-Stand Project Partners
attending the first project meeting
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Peer Learning Activity on the validation of non-formal and
informal learning – Vasteras, Sweden 15-16 November 2010
This peer learning activity focused on the update of the European Guidelines on the
validation and preparation for a European Council Recommendation on the promotion
and validation of non-formal and informal learning. The activity was attended by Mr
Richard Curmi, Senior Manager Assessment and Accreditation, MQC.

Due to the importance
of learning outcomes to
national and European
education this Peer
Learning Activity brought
together representatives
from most of the EU
Member States who aimed
to discuss how learning
outcomes enhanced the
transparency...

Peer Learning Activity (PLA): The Role of Quality Assurance
in defining, describing and assessing Learning Outcomes
Helsinki, 29-30 November 2010
Due to the importance of learning outcomes to national and European education this
Peer Learning Activity brought together representatives from most of the EU Member
States who aimed to discuss how learning outcomes enhanced the transparency,
comparability and portability of qualifications as well as learners’ active participation
through the learning outcomes approach. The PLA sought to address issues of mutual
trust which are a prerequisite for the functioning of instruments like the European
Qualifications Framework and ECVET. The underlying question revolved on quality
assurance. This Peer Learning Activity was attended by Ms Doris Mangion, Senior
Manager, MQC.
The Belgian EU Presidency Conference on Quality Assurance and Transparency as
Interface between VET, Schools and Higher Education to enhance mobility and to
support easier pathways to lifelong learning, 5-6 December 2010, and the Informal
Council of Ministers for Education and Training - Bruges, 6-7 December 2010.
The purpose of the Belgian Conference was to discuss the key issues in quality
assurance of VET in the context of stakeholders’ participation, learning outcomes,
self evaluation and work-based learning. The aim of the Informal Meeting for Ministers
of Education and Training was to discuss and approve the Bruges Communiqué on
Enhanced European Cooperation in Vocational Education and Training for the period
2011-2020.
The two activities were an opportunity for key European stakeholders and Ministers
responsible for Education and Training to address the key indicators for an enhanced
European Cooperation in education and training. The conference was attended by Dr
James Calleja, Chief Executive MQC and DGVET Malta Representative.

Meeting of the Committee for the Recognition of Professional
Qualifications – Brussels, 7th December 2010
Amongst the items on this meeting’s agenda were the discussion of the Single
Market Act, the minimum training requirements for Professions under the Automatic
Recognition Rules, the study evaluating the Professional Qualifications Directive
against recent educational reforms in European Union Member States, the degree of
harmonisation for the Pharmacy Profession, the IMI extension of other professions
and the update of the Directive’s annexes. This one-day meeting was attended by Ms
Shirley Micallef, Assistant to the Mutual Recognition Coordinator. Ms Micallef was
accompanied by health experts from the Pharmacy and Dentistry professions. These
were Profs Lillian Azzopardi and Dr David Muscat. A follow up to the meeting will be
held in June 2011.
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Modernisation of Higher Education
NCHE was involved in the content development and organisation of several Peer Learning
Activities forming part of the European Union’s Thematic Working Group on the Modernisation
of Higher Education, namely the Peer Learning Activity on New Skills for New Jobs in The
Hague from 8th to 10th March 2010 and the Peer Learning Activity on Lifelong Learning hosted
by the NCHE in Malta from 11th to 13th October 2010. NCHE also participated in several
Peer Learning Activities of the European Union’s Scientific and Technical Research Committee
(CREST), namely the Peer Learning Activity on the Reform of the Institutional Structure from
8th to 10th February 2010 in Copenhagen and the Peer Learning Activity on Capacity Building
from 17th to 19th May 2010 in Tartu.
The NCHE also took part in the EU Presidency Meeting for Directors General of Higher
Education held in September 2010 at which the issue of ranking of Universities was discussed,
as well as international seminars on themes of particular relevance to Malta’s higher education.
Other participation by NCHE in international activities include:
January 2010
• 22.01.2010, Erasmus Mundus Information Day, Brussels
February 2010
• 04.02.2010, New Skills For New Jobs: Action Now, Brussels
• 08.-10.02.2010, PLA Reform of the Institutional Structure, Copenhagen
March 2010
• 08-10.03 2010, PLA New Skills for New Jobs, The Hague
• 23-25.03.2010, Eurostudent steering group meeting, Prague
April 2010
• 08.-09.04.2010, Spring Communication/Spanish Presidency Conference: New Skills for
New Jobs, Barcelona
• 19-20.04.2010, EU Presidency Conference: Internationalisation of Higher Education, Madrid
May 2010
• 03.-08.05.2010, EU Presidency/ESU Conference: Public funding and social dimension of
higher education: investing into the future or borrowing from it?, Madrid
• 12.05.2010, Country Fiche Presentation, Brussels
• 17.-19.05.2010, PLA Capacity Building, Tartu
September 2010
• 06.-08.09.2010, EUROSTUDENT Intensive Seminar on data analysis and interpretation,
The Palace Hotel, Sliema
• 12.-14.09.2010, Directors General Higher Education Meeting, Namur
October 2010
• 04.10.2020, Erasmus Mundus Committee Meeting, Brussels
• 11.-13.10.2010, PLA Lifelong Learning – The role of Higher Education Systems in supporting
Lifelong Learning, Malta. This PLA incorporated a site-visit to the Malta Qualifications
Council. A large number of distinguished foreign and local speakers addressed this event. This
event was attended by Mr Philip von Brockdorff Chairman NCHE, Ms Christine Scholz and
Ms Tanya Zammit, Commission Officers NCHE and by Dr James Calleja, Chief Executive
MQC, Mr Richard Curmi and Ms Doris Mangion Senior Managers from MQC.
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PLA participants outside
MQC’s premises

• 15.10.2010, Erasmus Mundus Coordinators Conference, Brussels
November 2010
• 19.11.2010, “Quality Assurance: A national Bologna Process Seminar”, Victoria
Hotel, Sliema
• 22.11.2010, Meeting of National Agency representatives in charge of the management
of Bologna experts’ projects, Nicosia
• 26.11.2010, Erasmus Mundus National Structures Meeting, Brussels
December
• 01.12.2010, Meeting of the ECVET Users’ Group, Brussels
• 14.12.2010, “The Bologna Process: A National Bologna Expert Training Session”,
Dolmen Hotel, Qawra
NCHE also contributed to shaping Malta’s position on discussions and policies at EU level
relating to further and higher education in more than 100 occasions.

Bologna Activities
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In collaboration with the European Union Programmes Agency (EUPA) and the Bologna
Experts Group (Malta) the MQC/NCHE organised a series of seminars under the National
Teams of Bologna Experts Group 2009-2011. Two seminars were held in 2010 as part
of this project.
The first seminar, entitled ‘Quality Assurance: A National Bologna Process Seminar’,
was aimed at evaluating the implementation of quality assurance procedures in Higher
Education at institutional, national and European level, and obtaining feedback from
foreign and local experts on issues relating to quality assurance. Discussions held during
the seminar have reinforced the need of a quality culture in higher education in Malta,
including adequate quality assurance procedures within Further and Higher Education
Institutions as well as a quality assurance framework at national level. This seminar was
held on the 19th November 2010 at the Victoria Hotel, Sliema.
The aim of the second seminar held in 2010, entitled ‘The Bologna Process: A National
Bologna Expert Training Session’ was to discuss the challenges of the European Higher
Education Area, prioritizing Malta’s commitments towards the implementation of the
EHEA through Higher Education programmes, and exploring ways and means of better
coordinating reforms of the Bologna and Copenhagen Processes. Throughout the seminar,
several issues were raised mainly; the lack of awareness about the Bologna Process and
the need for better coordination between institutions for a harmonized and standardized
system on a national level. This seminar was held on the 14th December 2010 at the
Dolmen Resort Hotel, Qawra.
In 2011, another five Bologna Seminars will be organised covering a variety of topics
including Student-Centred Learning and Learning Outcomes. More information regarding
the 2010/2011 Bologna events can be found on: www.llp.eupa.org.mt and www.nche.
gov.mt

Participants during the first Bologna
Seminar – 19th November 2010
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National Bologna Activities Scheduled for 2011
Date - 20th January 2011
Topic - Employability

The seminar will focus the relevance of higher education to employability in the context
of a changing and challenging labour market. Cooperation between higher education
institutions and employers is of the utmost importance in order to achieve higher
employment rates, particularly amongst graduate students. This collaboration is further
needed to identify curricula based on a learning outcomes approach which will enable
students to move within the labour market.
With this in mind, the aim of the seminar is therefore to explore how employability can
be improved in the light of the three cycle system; the Malta Qualifications Framework
and the fields of study mostly relevant to Malta’s socio-economic development, especially
in view of the current global economic situation. An emphasis will also be drawn on
higher education institutions and employers’ role to provide ample career guidance and
equip students adequately by increasing the number of work placements and work-based
learning opportunities.

Date – 16-17 February 2011
Topic - Student-Centred Learning

42 MQC/NCHE Annual Report

The key objective of the seminar is to challenge the learning process in higher education
in the context of a desired student-centred approach. The goal is to identify indicators
that show how programmes in Higher Education can be recognised as student-centred.
The seminar will also focus on: designing flexible learning paths; developing new courses
based on learning outcomes; teaching paradigms; the increased importance of the social
dimension of Higher Education, the harmonisation of academic and vocational credits
and developments in the recognition of formal, informal and non-formal learning. The
conference will serve as a platform for the exchange of good practices between experts
from different countries and national stakeholders, particularly students, academic and
administrative staff as well as employers.

This half-day seminar will focus on the relevance of Higher Education Institutions to
research and innovation in the context of a changing and challenging EHEA. Cooperation
between European higher education institutions needs to be enhanced and new projects
need to be developed, particularly at doctoral level. More initiatives need to be undertaken
to ensure that Malta moves towards becoming a centre of excellence in education and
research. With this objective in mind, the aim of the seminar is to explore what measures
need to be taken now to increase participation rates in post-graduate research-based
courses and how more courses in fields relevant to Malta’s socio-economic growth can
be provided by HEIs in Malta. References to the relevant key objectives outlined in the
Leuven and Louvain-la-Neuve Communiqué will also be made.

Date – 10 March 2011
Topic - Education, Research
and Innovation

This seminar will bring together international and national stakeholders to discuss the
developments in International Openness and the International Dimension in the context
of the Leuven and the Louvain-La-Neuve Communique. This two day seminar will address
the issue of how Higher Education Institutions can improve the attractiveness of the EHEA
as a Higher Education destination. Particular focus will be placed on how partners in the
Bologna process can promote the European Higher Education Area beyond Europe’s
borders in an attempt to bridge the gap between participants countries’ external policies.

Date – 18-19 April 2011
Topic - International Openness and
the International Dimension

The main focus of this seminar will be to target the further development of learning
outcomes, whilst taking into consideration the different approaches towards writing
learning outcomes. The seminar will also delve into the technical approaches needed to
transform ‘outcomes’ in programmes of Higher Education into ‘learning outcomes’. The
scope is to ensure that in identifying what a learner ‘should know’ and ‘be able to do’ at
the end of a learning experience, a methodological approach is discussed that best fits the
professional capacity, needed to perform in a career.

Date – 20 May 2011
Topic - Learning Outcomes

Dr James Calleja addressing the second Bologna Seminar – 14th December 2010
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Briefing of Bologna Activities
to MQC/NCHE staff members

Briefing of Bologna Activities to MQC/NCHE staff
30thNovember 2010
The MQC and NCHE staff were briefed about the Bologna Process and the Bologna
Activities in Malta by Mr Karl Mintoff, EUPA and by Ms Debbie Lora Dimech, NCHE.
The Bologna process is an intergovernmental initiative which aims to create by 2011
a European Higher Education Area (EHEA) based on three cycles: Degree/Bachelor
- Master – Doctorate. It is based on cooperation between ministries, higher education
institutions, students and staff from 46 countries, with the participation of international
organisations.
Bologna Experts are funded by the European Commission and are appointed by the
National Authorities of the country concerned. A national team of 9 Maltese Bologna
Experts have been nominated for Malta.
The role of Bologna Experts within the Bologna Process is to assist Maltese Higher
Education Institutions in three main areas, that is, ‘Quality Assurance’, ‘Employability’ and
‘Education, Research and Innovation’. Other aspects are also included, such as the ECTS/
DS (introduction and labels), promotion of mobility (through the Erasmus Programme),
employability, social dimension, qualifications framework, lifelong learning, the promotion
of the European dimension in Higher Education, recognition of prior learning, studentcentred outcome-based learning, promoting the European Higher Education Area in a
global setting and European Higher Education Area and European Research area.
A number of activities will be held in 2010/2011 to promote the areas mentioned above.
These will include the Bologna Experts Fora and the Top-up Activities. Distinguished
foreign speakers will be invited to address these activities.
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3. Recognition of Qualifications
During 2010 MQC has also improved the services offered within the Malta Qualifications
Recognition Information Centre (MQRIC) by building more capacity and processes for the
recognition of qualifications. During 2010 MQRIC received over 2,000 applications with
over 6,000 qualifications to be assessed.

Statistics MQRIC Applications
1st January 2010 till 31st December 2010
No of Applications Received

2336

No of Qualifications to Assess

6177

Assessed Qualifications

5626

% of Assessed Qualifications

91.1%

MQRIC Officers
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Designated Authorities Meeting – 14th June 2010
An informal meeting for representatives of Designated Authorities was held at MQC.
Over 20 participants attended this meeting. This meeting was organised by Ms Shirley
Micallef Assistant to the Mutual Recognition Coordinator and chaired by Dr James Calleja,
Chief Executive. Topics on the agenda included a presentation on the questionnaire of
the Evaluation of Professional Qualifications as well as a discussion on the Professional
Qualifications Directive. Ms Josephine Sultana and Ms Jane Nind, MQRIC officers also
gave brief presentations during this meeting.

Designated Authorities Meeting – 30th September 2010
The Malta Qualifications Council also maintained an ongoing relationship and organised
two major meetings with all the Designated Authorities on the mutual recognition of
qualifications. The Office of the Mutual Recognition Coordinator has also been strengthened
so that Designated Authorities can address, in a more effective manner, their requests for
the mutual recognition of qualifications, skills and competences.

Designated Authorities and MQC
staff during the informal meeting
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18 representatives from Designated Authorities attended the first meeting held on the
30th September 2010. This meeting was held at MQC and was chaired by Dr James
Calleja, Chief Executive and Mutual Recognition Coordinator. The meeting was organised
by Ms Shirley Micallef Assistant to the Mutual Recognition Coordinator.

Annual Designated Authorities Conference– 30th November 2010
A number of distinguished speakers were invited to address this Annual Designated
Authorities Conference which was very well attended by representatives from various
Designated Authorities, representatives from Trade Unions and representatives from
Employers’ Associations. Amongst the speakers were Prof Maurice Grech, Principal,
MCAST, Ms Josyln Magro, Manager, National Statistics Office and Mr Ben Rizzo, Malta
Federation of Professional Associations. The speakers also included a number of MQC
staff including Dr James Calleja, Chief Executive and Mutual Recognition Coordiantor and
Ms Shirley Micallef, Assistant to the Mutual Recognition Coordinator. Amongst the topics
discussed in the conference were the qualifications and warranting processes, the alignment
of ISCED to the MQF, the Professional Card and the Recognition of Qualifications from
Third Country Nationals.

Participants during the Annual
Designated Authorities Conference

Dr James Calleja, Chief Executive
addressing the participants
during the Annual Designated
Authorities Conference
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4. Projects
ESF Project – VQPack
The European Social Fund Project - VQ Pack is an information pack for young people,
their parents and all educators interested in exploring the exciting world of vocational
training. Vocational education and training in Malta is provided by public funded institutions
such as the Malta College of Arts, Science and Technology (MCAST), the Institute of
Tourism Studies (ITS) and the Employment and Training Corporation (ETC) as well as
by the private sector in institutions or places of work. This pack focuses on a very wide
range of programmes of studies available at MCAST and at ITS. It provides information
on the link between study, training and work environments. It gives information about
courses available within each of the ten institutes, as well as how these courses can lead
young people to a successful career in the various sectors. Parents, guidance teachers
and counsellors are invited to discover how today vocational training enjoys the same
parity of esteem as other traditional subjects, it can provide a faster track to employment
and to lifelong learning and it opens up many opportunities to continuous professional
development during ones own working lifetime.

VQPack’s Publicity Material
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The VQPACK responds to a project designed, coordinated and managed by the Malta
Qualifications Council. It aims at attracting the attention of secondary school learners to
vocational education and training in development sectors which are important for our
country and our quality of life. VQPACK captures nine sectoral areas namely: Agribusiness,
Art and Design, Building and Construction Engineering, Business and Commerce,
Community Services, Electrical and Electronics Engineering, Heritage Studies, Mechanical
Engineering and Tourism Studies.
The outcomes of this project include the following –
• Setting up of a Consultation Research Task Force for each qualifications field;
• The conduction of Research Study;
• The setting up of joint expert groups for each qualification field of the nine sectors;
• Compilation and publication of VQ competence matrices manual for vocational
qualifications currently offered by MCAST/ ITS/ Heritage Malta in nine sectoral
sectors;
• Formulation of an Information Guide and 12 CD Career Path Pack related to the nine
key areas on the process of programme design and accreditation of VET; and
• Organisation of public seminars for dissemination of information related to the
competence matrix manual and the use of the information guide and 12 CD career
Patch Pack.
The project aims at fulfilling the strategic measures identified by the Copenhagen Process
(2002) for vocational training and in promoting industry-driven qualifications. The total
amount of EU funding allocated for this project amounts to €383,087.

ESF Expert Meeting at MQC July 2010
Experts on Vocational Education
and Training at MQC
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VQPack Consultation Colloquia 3rd December 2010
Around 80 participants attended the VQPack Consultation Colloquia that was held on
the 3rd December 2010 at the Victoria Hotel in Sliema. Participants were shown the
draft DVDs that were produced on the 9 sectoral areas. The Colloquia was chaired by
Dr James Calleja, Chief Executive MQC. The morning session covered the following
areas – heritage, agribusiness, art and design and community studies. The afternoon
session covered the following areas electrical and electronics engineering, mechanical
engineering, hospitality, business and commerce and building and construction. Different
stakeholders participated for the different sessions. These included various experts who
were involved in the project as well as representatives from the Malta College of Arts,
Science and Technology (MCAST) and the Institute of Tourism Studies (ITS). Feedback on
the draft DVD’s was gathered in order to finalise the DVD’s.
Mr Godfrey Kenely, Outlook Coop addressed both groups of participants. Mr Kenely
updated the participants on the research being carried out by Outlook Coop on Vocational
Qualifications. There was also a discussion on the main issues related to Learning
Outcomes, competence matrices and the use of these Manuals by employees and training
providers.

Dr James Calleja, Chief Executive
briefing participants on the
VQPack project

Participants who attended
the consultation colloquia
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ESF Project Skills+
This European Social Fund project maps skills in 9 defined key sectoral areas to match
occupational standards leading to formal certification and quality assurance, in order to
enhance employment. The 9 sectoral areas are Art and Design, Community Services,
Agribusiness, Building and Construction Engineering, Business and Commerce, Electrical
and Electronic Engineering, Mechanical Engineering, Tourism Studies and Heritage
Studies. The total amount of EU funding allocated for this project amounts to €354,167.
The activities related to this project include –
• The setting up of a consultation research task force in order to undertake the study and
propose the legal and management structure for the design of occupational standards
and the validation of informal and non-formal learning.
• A Research Study in trends in each specific key sector.
• The Design and Publication of the Occupational Standards in nine sectors/key areas.
• The setting up of the nine Sectoral Skills Units in the nine work related sectors involving
a number of experts within each identified vocational sector to define the competences
which apply to job roles/occupations in the form of statements of performance,
knowledge and the evidence required to confirm the competence.
• A Research study for matching skills exercise within each of the nine key areas.
• The publication of a manual containing occupational standards.
• The design of the draft legislation for the validation of informal and non-formal learning.
• The Production of nine DVD packs on career paths in the identified sectors.
• The Consultation Process, including both local and international experts, will facilitate
the finalisation of the national occupational standards as a framework for the legislation
of informal and non-formal learning.
The MQC held a number of meetings in 2010 to commence work on the research and
publicity aspect of this project. These meetings were carried out with Outlook Coop.

This European Social Fund project maps skills in 9
defined key sectoral areas to match occupational
standards leading to formal certification and quality
assurance, in order to enhance employment.

52 MQC/NCHE Annual Report

ReferNet Project
MQC is the institution in Malta coordinating the consortium which is currently made up
of the Malta College of Arts, Science and Technology (MCAST), the Institute of Tourism
Studies (ITS), the Institute of Conservation and Management of Cultural Heritage, the
Employment and Training Corporation (ETC), the Malta Chamber of Commerce,
Enterprise and Industry (MCCEI), the General Workers Union (GWU), the Unioni
Óaddiema Maqg˙udin (UÓM), the Hair and Beauty Federation and the Malta Printing
Industry Association (MPIA). ReferNet is a network created by CEDEFOP and is displayed
in CEDEFOP databases for the use of comparative studies regarding national vocational
education and training.

ReferNet Consortium Meeting January 2010

ReferNet Website Malta

Representatives from the ReferNet
Consortium who attended the
Consortium Meeting
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5. Communications
Fairs/Exhibitions 2010
During 2010 MQC/NCHE participated in a number of events and fairs in order to provide
information to the general public on the services offered by the MQC/NCHE as well as to
disseminate information on the various national and international projects.

ICT Inclusion Exhibition
Palazzo Ferraria, Valletta – 28-29 January 2010
MQC was invited to participate in this exhibition where a display of MQC’s publications
was set up. The exhibition was attended by Ms Valerie Attard, Communications Manager,
MQC. The exhibition was organised by the Foundation for IT Accessibility and the
Ministry for Social Policy, and aimed at increasing public awareness on e-Inclusion – the
application of ICTs for a more inclusive society. The launch of the exhibition coincided
with the EU 2010 subgroup meeting that was hosted in Malta on the 28th and 29th of
January. The launch also served as an opportunity to showcase local achievements whilst
offering a networking opportunity for entities engaged in the field.
A display of publications including
MQC’s Referencing Report

Learning Expo – Hilton – 9-12 March 2010
The NCHE in collaboration with the MQC participated in the Learning Expo Malta which
provided 5th Form students with information material on learning opportunities after
compulsory education, the role of the Malta Qualifications Framework and the importance
of the recognition of foreign qualifications and qualifications from private further and
higher education institutions.
Ms Jane Nind, MQRIC officer during
the Learning Expo
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ETC Fair – Ta’ Qali - 21st March 2010
This Fair was organised by the Employment and Training Corporation and was held at the
National Park at Ta’ Qali. MQC set up a stand to inform the general public attending the
fair about the MQRIC services.

The ETC Fair at Ta’ Qali

MQC’s stand at the ETC Fair

Eures Malta Annual Job Fair
Excelsior Hotel, Floriana – 14 – 15 May 2010
MQC participated in the ETC Annual Job Fair. This fair was organised by the European
Employment Services within the ETC. During the fair information on employment
opportunities in different European countries was made available.
Eures advisors from the UK, Germany, Sweden, Belgium, Greece, Lithuania and Romania
were present to give advice. During the Job Fair Eures advisors also assisted in online
job matching. Jobseakers could approach the online job search areas to be assisted in
identifying job opportunities.
Mr Alan Cauchi, MQC at the Eures
Malta Annual Job Fair
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Ms Valerie Attard, Communications Manager at the Eures Malta Annual Job Fair

Eures European Job Days Fair
Excelsior Hotel, Floriana, 8-9 October 2010
This Eures Job Fair aimed to have a number of European Employers who were interested
in recruiting Maltese staff.

KSU Fresher’s Week – University Campus, 4 – 8 October 2010
This Fair targeted University Students. MQC/NCHE disseminated information on the ESF
projects VQPack and Skills+ as well as on the services offered by the Malta Qualifications
Recognition Information Centre (MQRIC). This fair was very well-attended and MQC had
a prominent stand right next to the KSU stand. Various distinguished guests visited the fair
including H.E. The President of Malta Dr George Abela, the Prime-Minister Dr Lawrence
Gonzi, the Minister of Education, Hon. Dolores Cristina, the Leader of the Opposition
Hon. Dr Muscat, Dr Evarist Bartolo, Hon Dr Owen Bonnici, Hon. Clyde Puli and Hon
Franco Debono. KSU also organised a number of events during this fair and invited a
number of speakers.

Ms Beatrice Mizzi and Mr Alan Cauchi at KSU’s Fresher’s Week
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FHRD National Annual Conference and HR & Training Fair –
Intercontinental Hotel – 8th October 2010
This conference aimed to look at how to attract the best talent, retain and engage
employees in a post recession world by companies who are measured not how big they
are but how fast they are able to reach the market with innovative programmes and
services. Over 100 participants attended this conference, these participants could visit
the stands set up outside the conference room during the various coffee and lunch breaks.
MQC promoted the EQF projects VQPack and Skills + during this Fair.

Science and Technology Festival
University Campus, 25 – 31 October 2010
This was the second year that MQC participated in the Science and Technology Festival.
The Festival targeted University Students but also members of the General Public.

Ms Jane Nind, MQC at the FHRD
Training Fair

ESF Projects and Referencing Report Display Banners

MCAST Foundation Day – 30-31 October 2010
NCHE together with MQC staff were present at this year’s MCAST Foundation Days to
provide first year students at this institution with information on educational opportunities
and funding schemes helping them to realise their educational aspirations and support
them to study abroad.
Ms Debbie Lora Dimech, NCHE at
MCAST Foundation Day
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6. MQC’s participation in the Media
The MQC has kept an ongoing communications strategy to keep all stakeholders including
the general public well-informed. This was done primarily through the use of the website
and MQC’s participation in a number of television and radio programmes. Throughout
this strategy MQC has focused on bridging together the Copenhagen and the Bologna
processes as a means to link vocational and academic education and ensure that the
country’s economic and social growth is derived from both processes.

Name

Organisation

Date

Station

Programm

Presenter

Topic

Ray Calleja

MQC and the		
referencing Report

Mr Richard Curmi
MQC- Senior Manager
07/01/2010 TVM
12.05
Ray Calleja
						
						
						

The Validation 		
of Informal and
Non-formal 		
Learning

Dr James Calleja
MQC- Chief Executive
22 /01/2010 Education 22 Perspettiva
Joyce Grech
						

MQC and the National
Conference

Mr Richard Curmi
MQC- Senior Manager
22/01/2010 Education 22 Perspettiva
Joyce Grech
						
						
						

The Validation of 		
Informal & Non-Formal
Learning and 		
stakeholders involvement

Mr Richard Curmi
MQC- Senior Manager
21/10/2010 RTK
				

The Validation Process

Mr Joe Abela Fitzpatrick MQC-Chairman
07/01/2010 TVM
12.05
					

Iswed Abjad
jew Griz

Cynthia Zerafa

Mr Richard Curmi

MQC- Senior Manager

01/02/2010

Radio 101		

Randolph Spiteri MQC & MQRIC services

Ms Valerie Attard

MQC – Comm. Manager

01/02/2010

Radio 101

Randolph Spiteri MQC & MQRIC services

Ms Valerie Attard

MQC – Comm. Manager

05/02/2010

Education 22 Perspettiva

Joyce Grech

MQC & MQRIC services

Mr Richard Curmi
MQC- Senior Manager
05/03/2010 Education 22 Perspettiva
Joyce Grech
						

Conference on 		
Occupational Standards

Ms Jane Nind

MQRIC Applications

MQC-Senior Clerk

23/03/2010

Education 22 Perspettiva

Joyce Grech

Ms Josephine Sultana
MQC-Recognition Officer 23/03/2010 Education 22 Perspettiva
Joyce Grech
						

MQRIC Applications 		
and services

Ms Valerie Attard

MQC & MQRIC services

MQC-Comm. Manager

26 April 2010

TVM

Bongu

Josef Bonello
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7. Study Visits to MQC
The objective of these study visits was to explore the processes used in Malta in
setting up the Malta Qualifications Framework for Lifelong Learning and in finalising
the Referencing Report of the MQF to the EQF and the Qualifications Framework
of the European Higher Education Area. The study visits formed part of the Malta
Qualifications Council’s consultation process to test the Malta Qualifications Framework
at national and international levels.

Turkish/Cypriot Delegation visit MQC – January 2010
15 Higher Education Officials formed part of a Turkish/Cypriot delegation. The delegation
spent a morning at MQC and were updated about the function and services offered by the
Council as well as on the work on the setting up of the Malta Qualifications Framework
and on the Referencing Report. The delegation were addressed by Dr James Calleja,
Chief Executive who also chaired the meeting as well as by Mr Richard Curmi and Ms
Doris Mangion, Senior Managers, Ms Carmen Dalli and Ms Valerie Attard Managers
MQC and by Ms Josephine Sultana MQRIC officer.

Turkish/Cypriot Delegation and MQC staff at MQC

Greek Delegation Study Visit – 8-9 April 2010
This 2-day study visit was made up of three Greek participants. These were Mr Michalis
Kouroutos, Secretary of Education of GSEE, Mr Nikos Fotopoulos, Research Associate of
KANEP/GSEE and Ms Elena Bakatselou, Research Associate of KANEP/GSEE. The visit
was organised by Ms Valerie Attard, Communications Manager MQC. The visit included a
number of presentations by MQC staff members on the functions of the Council as well as
the work on the setting up of the Malta Qualifications Framework and on the Referencing
Report. The visit also incorporated visits to a number of stakeholders including the
University of Malta, the Malta College of Arts, Science and Technology, the Institute
of Tourism Studies, the Malta Chamber of Commerce, Enterprise and Industry and the
General Workers’ Union.
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This visit also incorporated a meeting with Dr Grace Grima, Director-General Quality
and Standards in Education. The meeting focused on the reform structure in compulsory
education in Malta and the new school leaving certificate. The Greek delegation were
impressed with the content of the new school leaving certificate and in particular with the
idea to give value to the validation of informal and non-formal learning. Such a culture
would encourage more people to remain in lifelong learning even after finishing their
compulsory education. The Director-General explained in detail the process by which the
reform in compulsory education will be implemented in Malta in the coming years, the
structure of the college system as well as the assessment model in primary and secondary
education.
Another meeting was held with Ms Veronica Grech Registrar University of Malta. This
meeting focused on the structure of the programmes of studies and courses at the Alma
Mater as well as the specific work of the Registrar’s Office in ensuring that all certification
reflects the study units of each degree or diploma programme. The Registrar delved into
the processes used at University in assessing students at entry point as well as, in the case
of adult learners, in the validation of informal and non-formal learning. The discussion
also delved into aspects of quality assurance, the credit system as well as the Diploma
Supplement which the University of Malta has been issuing to successful students since
2005. Aspects of the recognition of studies of foreign students were also discussed and the
Registrar showed how cooperation with the Malta ENIC-NARIC centre helps to identify
the correct value of such studies.
Malta has the capacity to offer such foreign guests the techniques necessary to set up
a qualifications framework which responds to the education culture of a given society
and the European Qualifications Framework. In each of the governmental and nongovernmental organisations visited, the qualifications framework of Malta is now well
placed in the system of qualifications and structures of courses and programmes of studies.
Furthermore, these initiatives have served to ensure that the European tools concerning
credits, quality assurance, recognition, transparency and the validation of informal and
non-formal learning are applied as a means to attract and retain learners in a lifelong
learning process.

Mr Joe Cutajar, MQC Council Member
addressing the Greek Delegation

Dr James Calleja, Chief Executive addressing the Greek Delegation
at the MCCEI, Valletta
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New Zealand Delegation Visit MQC – 22nd April 2010
During a 2-hour meeting the delegation were briefed on the progress Malta has made on
the Referencing Report. The topic of the meeting also centred round the validation of
informal and non-formal learning and how this can be incorporated into a framework.
The delegates in turn briefed MQC staff members present for the meeting about the
educational structure in New Zealand.

Mr Richard Curmi, Senior Manager
addressing the New Zealand
Delegation at MQC

MQC Staff members with
the New Zealand Delegation
outside MQC’s premises

Danish Leonardo Study Visit – Guidance Goes Global –
2 – 8 May 2010
This Leonardo Study Visit comprised of four participants. These were Mr Poul Nielsen
Student Counselor, Aalborg Technical Gymnasium, Mrs Hanne Enggaard, Student
Counselor and former vocational teacher at Media College Aalborg, Mr Christian Möll,
Student Counselor and Mr Lars Raae Student Coach, Media College Aalborg.
The Study Visit was organized by Ms Valerie Attard, Communications Manager MQC
in collaboration with Counselors Ms Mary Rose Farrugia, Ms Frances Agius and Ms
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Lorraine Calleja. The study visit incorporated visits to the Institute of Tourism Studies,
the Malta College of Arts, Science and Technology, a number of private and public media
organizations, the Salesian Press and the Employment and Training Corporation. The
visit also incorporated a number of meetings with college counselors at the Directorate for
Educational Services. The participants were given a general overview of the educational
system in Malta with particular emphasis on the counseling services. The visit ended with a
seminar hosted by the Malta Qualifications Council on the Malta Qualifications Framework
and the role that MQC plays in the General Education System.

Participants in the Danish
Study Visit at MQC

Brazilian Delegation’s Visit at MQC - 25th May 2010
Three representatives of SENAI Mr Jose Valcir de Souza, Mr Geovane Medeiros Alvaro
and Mr Laur Scalzaretto, a representative of ANAC Mr Clecios Vinicius Batista e Silva and
a representative of PEARSON Mr Jorge Dores visited MQC as part of a visit hosted by
the Malta College of Arts, Science and Technology (MCAST). Mr Vince Maione, Director
Quality Assurance, MCAST accompanied the Brazilian Delegation.
The key objective of the visit was to seek opportunities of co-operation between entities in
the two countries in aspects related to education and training.
Dr James Calleja, Chief Executive of MQC spoke about the developments brought
about by the Lisbon Strategy in the field of education particularly about the Bologna
and Copenhagen Processes and the European Qualifications Framework. He added that
these developments had a positive impact on reform in the education sector in Malta
including the launching of the Malta Qualifications Framework. Dr Calleja delved into
Malta’s national qualifications framework and how such a framework will act as catalyst for
processes and mechanisms to improve the quality of education at all levels.
Ms Doris Mangion, Senior Manager Standards and Qualifications focused on the
Referencing Report which referenced the MQF to the EQF and the Qualifications
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MQC Staff members with the
Brazilian Delegation

Framework for Higher Education (QF-EHEA) and described how Malta met the criteria
established by the EQF Advisory Group. She also spoke about the process by which
Malta through MQC, linked its education and training structures to those in other EU
Member States through the EQF and how this process was strengthen by stakeholders’
participation throughout the consultation period.

Kosovo Study Visit – 11-23 October 2010
Ms Teuta Danuza, Director of the National Qualifications Authority in Prishtine, Kosovo
was invited to visit MQC for a 2-week study visit. Ms Valerie Attard, Communications
Manager organised the visit. This visit included participation in a Peer Learning Visit on the
Modernisation of Higher Education which was organised by the National Commission for
Higher Education. The visit also included individual meetings with all staff members within
the MQC so that Ms Danuza could have an in-depth knowledge of the services and tasks
carried out by the Council. The visit also included meetings with the Customer Services
Section of the Education Department, the Employment and Training Corporation, the
Malta Chamber of Commerce, Enterprise and Industry, the Malta College of Arts, Science
and Technology, the Institute of Tourism Studies and the National Statistics Office and the
EFL Monitoring Board.
The objectives of the Study Visit were primarily to become acquainted with the structure
and functions of MQC as well as the different milestones in setting up the National
Qualifications Framework. The following topics were also included •
•
•
•
•
•

Internal management procedures adopted by the Malta Qualifications Council
Sources of finance for the Qualifications Council
Promotion of the National Qualifications Framework amongst stakeholders
Policy and strategies for the further development and maintenance of the NQF
Criteria and responsibilities for the identification of occupational training standards
Criteria, procedures and responsibilities for the development, validation,
maintenance and quality assurance of qualifications
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• Procedures and responsibilities for the leveling of qualifications in the framework
and for the removal of redundant qualifications
• Criteria and procedures for the accreditation of awarding bodies
• Self-assessment, internal verification and external quality assurance procedures for
accredited awarding bodies
• Procedures for maintaining records of qualifications awarded
• Procedures for locating foreign qualifications in a national framework
• Procedures for validating non-formal and informal learning
• Procedures for integrating higher education qualifications with post-secondary
qualifications
• Frameworks for conducting a dialogue and consultations with social partners and
other stakeholders
• Evidence of the ways in which the NQF is used by national HRD planners,
employers and individuals
• Means of referencing a national qualifications framework to the European
Qualifications Framework.

Ms Teuta Danuza with MQC Staff Members
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8. Social Activities
MQC Staff Lunch –
2nd September 2010

MQC/NCHE Team Building Activity –
November 2010
This activity commenced with a meeting during which Dr James
Calleja, Chief Executive, Dr Phlip von Brockdorff Chairman
NCHE and Mr Joseph Abela Fitzpatrick, Chairman MQC briefed
staff about the merger of the two entities and the transfer of
NCHE staff to MQC’s premises in St. Lucia. Dr James Calleja
also explained the roles and responsibilities of the staff members.
The meeting was followed by lunch.

MQC Christmas Meal December 2010
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9. MQC’s/NCHE’s Achievement in Numbers
International Activities

45

National Activities

25

Participation in National Fairs/Events

9

EQF/NQF Information Activities

6

Publications

30

Publicity Boards/Banners

7

Websites

4

New International Projects

5

Participation on Radio/TV programmes

12

Inclusion in Print Media

Approx 30

MQRIC Applications to Assess

6177

MQRIC Applications Assessed

5626
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10. MQC’s/NCHE’s Publications
MQC Publications

VET/General Education/
University Qualifications
The Malta Qualifications Council,
in collaboration with the National
Commission for Higher Education,
produced a set of three colourful
information leaflets on the three
sectors of education namely
Vocational Education and Training
Qualifications, General Education
Qualifications (compulsory
education) and University
Qualifications. These leaflets
were distributed during MQC’s
participation in a number of fairs
and events.

Classifying Qualifications – A National Awards System referenced to the
Malta Qualifications Framework: a proposal
This publication is the result of the experience gained in maintaining the Malta
Qualifications Framework for Lifelong Learning. Ensuring quality and standards is one
of the key challenges that Malta’s system of education faces today. The other chal¬lenges
are to create home-grown qualifications that can match international standards and
criteria, to attract more learn¬ers to lifelong learning and foreign students to Malta’s
further and higher education public and private institutions.
This document is written to address these objectives by proposing an awards system
that can best fit the Malta Qualifica¬tions Framework, help training providers design
qualifications that respond to the needs of individuals, employers and the labour market
and provide young learners with a holistic form of education. The awards system that
is being suggested aims at giving every individual who embarks on a formal learning
experience the tools to upgrade, adapt and widen his or her knowledge, skills and
competences.

Secondary School Certificate and
Profile – Guidelines determining the
verification of informal learning in
secondary education
This publication was published in October
2010. The content of this report was
prepared by Dr. James Calleja, Chief
Executive of MQC in col¬laboration with
Prof. Grace Grima, Director-General,
Directorate for Quality and Standards
in Education (DQSE), Cav. Anthony
DeGabriele, Assistant Director, Assessment
for Learning, DQSE and Ms Joanne-Rita
Grima, EO, Assessment for Learning, DQSE.
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Bridge to the Future
This report describes the national VET system in Malta as it stood in 2009. Indeed,
the report illustrates how since 2001 VET in Malta has heavily influenced the profile
of our workforce in Malta. More and more young people are successfully completing
one or more VET courses in our public VET institutions notably the Malta College of
Arts, Science and Technology, the Institute of Tourism Studies and the Employment
and Training Corporation. The overall policy established by government is to provide
vocational training to the widest possible spectrum of our people in the context of
economic and social development. This goal is being achieved through full-time and
part-time courses in areas such as Information
and Communication Technology, Electronic
and Mechanical Engineering, Business and
Commerce, Care, Agribusiness, Maritime Studies,
Art and Design, Heritage Studies and Building
Construction Engineering.

VET Policy Report
This country report is part of a series of reports
on vocational education and training produced
for each EU Member State plus Norway and
Iceland by members of ReferNet, a network
established by CEDEFOP (European Centre
for the Development of Vocational Training).

ReferNet Leaflet
This leaflet was produced in order to disseminate information on ReferNet and on
the deliverables the MQC has produced in relation to this network. ReferNet is a
network, established by the European Centre for the Development of Vocational
Training (CEDEFOP), to provide comparable information across Europe in Vocational
Education and Training (VET). ReferNet provides a decentralised information
exchange, based on national consortia in participating countries, made up of VET
stakeholders. Network activities are focused on documentation and information
exchange on developments in VET policy and research across the European Union.

Revised Referencing Report
This document was originally prepared to reference the Malta
Qualifications Framework to the overreaching EQF and the
QF-EHEA frameworks. This second revised edition, which was
published in December 2010, carries the updated results of the
referencing process in addition to a new chapter which illustrates
the implementation of the referencing process in setting up an
awards system for Malta. Part Five can be described as a tangible
application of a Referencing process that evolves an education
system into higher levels of transparency, transferability and
progression. MQC’s mission to value all learning is truly reflected
in Part Five where credits become awards qualifying what a
person ‘knows’ and is ‘able to do’.
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National Coordination Point for
the EQF - Publications
A set of six publications were
produced to dissemination
information on the European
Qualifications Framework. The six
publications target different categories
of stakeholders which include the
general public, public entities,
employers, worker representatives
and trade unions, public and private
training providers at vocational,
higher and tertiary level and students
at secondary, post-secondary,
vocational and tertiary level. In its role
as National Coordination Point for
the EQF the Council also produced a
DVD on the European Qualifications
Framework.
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ESF- VQPack Publications
A number of publications were produced in order to
disseminate information on the European Social Fund
Project - VQPack. These included brochures, flyers
and leaflets.
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NCHE Publications
2nd Annual Further and Higher Education Statistics Report
In February 2010, the NCHE published its second Annual Further and Higher Education
Statistics Report for the scholastic year ending 2009; which served as a research tool for
adequate and specific consultation to the Government. During February to June 2010,
the NCHE conducted its third Further and Higher Education Statistics Survey with more
institutions providing post-secondary and tertiary education participating in the survey.
Overall, 36 institutions being state, state-dependent, and independent have provided their
timely contribution. Through this increase in participation, the availability and accuracy of
data on student headcounts in Further and Higher education in Malta was subsequently
improved. Hence, this is a very encouraging development and triggers authorities to
successfully proceed with structured dialogue and consultation processes with different
stakeholders.
The main findings of the NCHE Further and Higher Education Statistics Report 2010 are:
• 73% of 17-year-olds participate in further and higher general and vocational education.
• Post-secondary vocational education (full-time & part-time) is becoming more attractive
than post-secondary academic education; with 54% of the total post-secondary student
population following vocational courses.
• Since 2005, the majority of students following part-time post-secondary courses have
opted for vocational courses.
• The 2010 survey revealed that participation rates of full-time students enrolled within
post-secondary (vocational) courses have acceded for the first time that of full-time
academic courses.
• The participation rate of 19-year-olds in further and higher education was that of 56%.
• The majority of students following tertiary education tend to choose the field of Social
Science, Business and Law; representing 37% of the total tertiary student population.
• The NCHE target of reaching 85% participation rate in post-secondary education
by 2015 for the 17-year-old cohort is slowly being reached; where according to the
survey, there has been a 13% increase in the 17-year-old participation rate - from 60%
in 2009 to 73% in 2010. This increase is attributable to a significant increase in the
participation rates at MCAST in the year 2010.
• Over the last decade, growth in tertiary education students has been increasing; with
the year 2010 registering the highest participation with 10,737 students.
• The share of students in Malta in 2010 following tertiary academic education at NQF
levels 5, 6, 7 and 8 in the private sector is very low compared to the OECD-average of
24% (2008).
• The large majority of tertiary education students in Malta are absorbed by public
institutions offering tertiary education.
• In 2010 for the first time 63 students from MCAST graduated with a Bachelor
Vocational Degree at MQF Level 6.
• Participation in tertiary education in Malta peaks in the 18-22-age-groups, with
participation being highest at age 20.
• In Malta, the rate of graduates at MQF levels 6, 7 and 8 (ISCED level 5 and 6) in
Mathematics, Science, and Technology, aged between 20-29 years is still relatively low
(6.0%) when compared to the EU-27 rate of (13.9%).
• Trends in gender imbalance in various fields of study are reflected in the same way in
Malta and in the EU.
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• Incoming student mobility for the Erasmus programme was significantly higher than
outgoing with 437 and 178 students respectively for the academic year 2009-2010.

Student Guide - “What do you want to be?”
To inform 5th Form students about their opportunities to continue studies after compulsory
education NCHE developed a student guide entitled “What do you want to be?” The
guide provides information on the Maltese education system, the main further and higher
education institutions in Malta, funding opportunities to undertake studies, possibilities
to study abroad, as well as information on student life in general and the importance
of voluntary work for the development transversal skills. The guide was distributed to
all students in 5th Form and 6th Form in public, church and independent schools in the
academic year 2009/2010. To continuously provide this information to 5th Form students
in the coming academic years NCHE has reprinted the student guide for the academic
year 2010/2011 and also applied for ESF funding to provide more and better career
guidance information to students in the coming years.
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11. NCHE’s Financial Statements
NATIONAL COMMISSION FOR HIGHER EDUCATION
REPORT OF THE COMMISSION
The Commission presents the report and the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The National Commission for Higher Education is an institution established under the
Education Act Cap 327.
The Commission is governed by a Chairman, a Deputy Chairman and five members as
appointed by the Prime Minister on the 3rd November 2008 for a period of three years
as follows:
			
			
			
			
			
			
			

Dr Philip von Brockdorff – Chairman
Mr Alexander Manché – Deputy Chairman
Professor Josef Bonnici
Professor John Portelli
Associate Professor Grace Grima
Dr Jennifer Cassingena Harper
Dr Anna Mifsud Bonnici

The Commission is entrusted with the furtherance and expansion of higher education to
meet education requirements adopted by the Government.
The Commission changed its premises at year end and moved from the University Building
in Valletta to the Malta Qualifications Council office in Santa Lucia.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMISSION
The Commission is responsible amongst others to prepare an annual report on the work of the Commission during the preceding
year. This entails responsibility to ensure that:
a. Proper accounting records are kept of all transactions entered into by the Commission and of its assets and liabilities;
b. Adequate controls and procedures are in place for safeguarding the assets of the Commission, and the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities.
In preparing the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs as at the end of each financial year and of
its surplus or deficit for that year, the Commission:
• selects suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
• makes judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
• follows International Financial Reporting Standards;
• prepares the financial statements on the going concern basis unless this is considered inappropriate.

RESULTS
The results for the year under review show a surplus of € 77,463 (2009 – deficit of € (15,372)).

Dr Philip von Brockdorff
Chairman

3 February 2011
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Mr Alexander Manché
Deputy Chairman

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE COMMISSION
We have audited the accompanying financial statements on pages 80-87. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Commission. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. These Standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the Commission, as well as evaluating the overall financial statements
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Commission as at 31 December 2010
and of its surplus, changes in net assets/equity and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Education Act, Cap 327.

Arthur Douglas Turner – Partner
On behalf of Turner and Associates
“Turner and Associates”,
13, Curate Fenech Street.
Birzebbugia

4 February 2011
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INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
For the year ended 31 December 2010
		
2010
Notes
€
INCOME			
Government Contribution
1
248,500
Government Contribution in relation to Capital			
Expenditure		
20,806
Gain on disposal		
243
		
__________
		
269,549
EXPENDITURE			
Administrative and Other Expenses 		
(192,086)
		
__________
SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR
2
€ 77,463
		
__________
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2009
€
276,617
17,985
________
294,602
(309,974)
________
€ (15,372)
________

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31 December 2010
		
2010
2009
ASSETS
Notes
€
€
Non-Current Assets 			
Property, plant & equipment 				
3
37,322
56,628
		
_________
_________
Current Assets			
Trade and other receivables
4
3,500
Cash at bank and in hand 		
83,175
2,554
		
_________
_________
		
83,175
6,054
		
_________
_________
Current Liabilities 			
Trade and other payables
5
(20,706)
(23,118)
		
_________
_________
Total Assets less Current Liabilities 		
99,791
39,564
Non-Current Liabilities 			
Trade and other payables
6
(21,407)
		
_________
Total Net Assets 		
€ 78,384
		
_________

(38,643)
_________
€ 921
_________

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 			
Equity 			
Accumulated surplus
7
€ 78,384
		
_________

€ 921
_________

The financial statements on pages 23 to 30 were approved by the Commission on 3 February 2011,
and signed on its behalf by:

Dr Philip von Brockdorff
Chairman

Mr Alexander Manché
Deputy Chairman
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2010
		
2010
Notes
€
CASH FLOW USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES			
Surplus / (Deficit) for the year 		
77,463
Add: Depreciation 		
15,915
Less: Government Contribution in relation to Capital 			
Expenditure transferred to Income and Expenditure 			
Account		
(20,806)
Less: gain on disposal		
(243)
		
________
Surplus / (Deficit) from operating activities 		
72,329
Decrease in debtors 		
3,500
(Decrease) / increase in creditors 		
(342)
		
________
NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
75,487
		
________
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 			
Payments to acquire property, plant & equipment
8 (a)
(1,500)
Proceeds from disposal of motor vehicle		
5,134
		
________
NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
3,634
		
________
FINANCING ACTIVITIES			
Proceeds from Government Contribution in relation			
to Capital Assets
8 (a)
1,500
		
________
NET MOVEMENT IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS		
80,621
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year		
2,554
		
________
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
8 (b)
€ 83,175
		
________
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2009
€
(15,372)
17,985

(17,985)
________
(15,372)
10,411
567
________
(4,394)
________
(3,383)
________
(3,383)
________

3,383
________
(4,394)
6,948
________
€ 2,554
________

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2010
1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of Accounting
The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.
The particular accounting policies which have been applied consistently are described below:
(b) Property, plant & equipment
Property, plant & equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets over the estimated useful lives, using the straight line method, on the
following bases:
%
Office equipment
10
Furniture and fittings

10

Air-conditioning

16.67

Motor vehicles

20

Website and Information Tool

25

Computer equipmen

25

(c) Impairment
At each statement of financial position, the Commission reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized as an expense immediately. Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as income immediately.
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1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Trade and other debtors
Trade and other debtors are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts.
Trade and other creditors
Trade and other creditors are stated at their nominal value.
(d) Revenue recognition
Government contributions are recognized as income when received.
Government contribution represents amounts received in terms of recurrent and capital votes. Government contribution
received in respect of expenditure charged to the income and expenditure account during the year has been included in the
income and expenditure account. The remainders, which are spent for the acquisition for tangible assets, are deferred and are
included in the income and expenditure account by installments over the expected useful lives of the related assets.

2. SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR
2010

2009

€

€

1,032

1,020

Depreciation on property, plant & equipment

15,915

17,985

Staff costs

83,161

154,541

________

________

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year is stated after changing:
Audit fees

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year is stated after crediting:		
Government Contribution in relation to Capital Assets		
transferred to Income and Expenditure Account
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20,806

17,985

________

________

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2010
3. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Office &
Furniture &
Kitchen
Fixtures
Equipment		
E
E

AirMotor
Computer
conditioning
Vechicle
Equipment
Equipment			
E
E
E

Website &
Information
Tool
E

Total

E

Cost							
At 01/01/10

6,287

29,378

13,020

12,229

20,408

18,806

100,128

Additions

-

-

-

-

-

1,500

1,500

Disposals

-

-

-

(12,229)

-

-

(12,229)

_______

__________

________

_______

________

________

________

6,287

29,378

13,020

-

20,408

20,306

89,399

______

__________

________

________

________

________

________

At 31/12/10

Depreciation							
At 01/01/10
Charge for the year
Released on disposal
At 31/12/10

1,600

8,270

6,507

7,338

15,084

4,701

43,500

628

2,937

2,169

-

5,105

5,076

15,915

-

-

-

(7,338)

-

-

(7,338)

________

__________

________

_______

________

________

________

2,228

11,207

8,676

-

20,189

9,777

52,077

______

__________

________

________

________

________

________

Net book value							
At 31/12/10

4,059

18,171

€ 4,344

-

219

10,529

37,322

______

_________

________

_______

________

________

________

							
At 31/12/09

4,687

21,108

6,513

4,891

5,324

14,105

56,628

________

_________

________

________

________

________

________
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2010
4. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Prepayments and accrued income

2010
€
________

2009
€ 3,500
________

2010
€
Deferred Government Contribution for Capital 		
Expenditure (note 6)
15,915
Accruals
4,791
________
€ 20,706
________

2009
€

5. CURRENT LIABILITIES

6. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

2010
€
Deferred Government Contribution for Capital Expenditure
37,322
Less: Amounts to be transferred to Income and		
Expenditure Account within one year (note 5)
(15,915)
________
€ 21,407
________

7. ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
At 1 January
Surplus / (Deficit) for the year
At 31 December

2010
€
921
77,463
________
€ 78,384
________

17,985
5,133
________
€ 23,118
________
2009
€
56,628
(17,985)
________
€ 38,643
________

2009
€
16,293
(15,372)
________
€ 921
________

8. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(a) Property, Plant & Equipment
During the year, the Commission acquired additions to website and information systems with an aggregate cost of € 1,500.
Furthermore, € 1,500 has been reclassified from recurrent income to Deferred Government Contribution for Capital Expenditure.
(b) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash in hand and balances with bank. A cash flow is an increase or decrease in amount
of cash or cash equivalents resulting from a transaction. The net cash flow movement is reflected in the statement of financial
position as follows:
2010
2009
€
€
Cash at bank and in hand
€ 83,175
€ 2,554
_________
_________

9. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
The Commission moved to new premises in Santa Lucia at year end. Property, plant and equipment with a net book value of €
12,469 were transferred onto the University of Malta subsequent to year end.
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NCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

For the year ended 31 December 2010
2010
€

2009
€

INCOME 		
Government Contribution

248,500

276,617

Government Contribution in relation to Capital		
Expenditure
Gain on disposal

20,806

17,985

243

-

__________

_________

269,549

294,602

__________

_________

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER EXPENSES 		
Accountancy fees

1,524

1,666

Advertising

3,510

3,943

Audit fees

1,032

1,020

86

285

Board Honoraria

20,030

23,367

Depreciation

15,915

17,985

2,116

1,365

663

2,588

Hire of stands

2,673

2,130

Leasing of equipment

1,469

-

Local meetings and conferences

6,638

15,231

Memberships

8,500

8,400

-

669

Office stationery

474

3,036

Professional fees

1,200

391

-

3,298

14,060

23,602

2,492

1,284

854

986

1,033

935

120

162

2,204

3,045

Travelling – Board Members to Malta

10,519

6,668

Travelling – Conferences and Initiatives

11,706

32,903

Wages

83,161

154,541

107

474

__________

_________

192,086

309,974

__________

_________

€ 77,463

€ (15,372)

Bank charges

Driver’s expenses
Events materials printing and design

Motor vehicle expenses

Public relations
Publications
Repairs and servicing
Subscriptions
Sundry expenses
Staff training
Telecommunications

Website costs

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR
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